
 
 
 

EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

 

AGENDA 
TOWN BOARD MEETING  
June 10, 2025 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Approval of the Agenda  

 
III. Public Comment – See Policy on Citizen Input and Conduct at Township Meetings. 

 
IV. Reports 

A. Sheriff’s Department 
B. Planning Commission- Dave Wheeler 

 
V. Permits 

A. Smith, David, 6675 245th St. W., PID13-01500-07-010 *Solar (ground-mounted) 3-7 
 

VI. Complaints 
A. 2025-01- Follow up- 9235 Upper 240th Street W, Lakeville – Ridge Oien 11-12 
B. 2025-02 and 2025-03- 9235 Upper 240th Street W, Lakeville- Ridge Oien 8-10 

 
VII. Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

A. Planning Commission Recommendation 
i. WSB Memorandum  13-14 

ii. Draft Resolution of Approval 2025-   15 
iii. Comprehensive Plan Changes Revised 16-19 

B. Original Recommendations 
i. Draft Resolution of Approval based on Original Recommendations 2025   21 

ii. Comprehensive Plan- Original Recommendations   22-30 
 

VIII. LTS Utility CUP - PID: 13-02300-76-030 
A. WSB Memorandum   31-34 
B. Draft Resolution of Approval 2025-   35-36 
C. Location Map   37 
D. Application Packet   38-67 

 
XI. OMG Midwest- Mining Text Amendment 

a. WSB Memorandum   68-74 
b. Draft Resolution of Denial 2025-   75 
c. Public Comment Letters   76- 124 
d. Application Packet  125- 158 
e. Comparison Table   159 

 
XII. Road Report (Ceminsky) 

 
XIII. Consent Agenda 



 
 
 

a. 5.13.2025 Town Board Minutes   160-167 
 

XIV. Treasurer’s Report 
a. May  Treasurer’s Report  Pages 1-22  
b. Net pay and claims    Pages 23-71 

i. Net Pay:     3,898.19   
ii. Claims:     84,545.50   

iii. Total:        88,443.69  
c. May Disbursements $91,480.73 & Receipts $51,961.8 Pages 72-82 
d. Other Reports: Cash Control Statement, Schedule 1, PTO, Investments with accrued 

interest  Pages 83-88 
e. CD/ Financial Recommendations  Pages 89-90 

 
XV. Unfinished Business 

a. Orderly Annexation Agreements- Conversations with Cities- Attorney 
b. MPM Chard Mining Reclamation- Attorney  
c. Hamburg- Chub Lake Crossing 

i. Resolution 2025-   168-169 
d. Farmington 220th Road Agreement- Attorney   170-177 
e. Request for Bid- Roads 
f. Gravel Financing 

i. Bonds Attorney 
g. Financial Advisor  
h. PIN-13-01100-51-013- Letter Sent- July meeting 

 
XVI. New Business 

a. Resolution 2025- Planning Commission Meeting nights 178 
b. Dakota County Voting Equipment 179-188 
c. Microphones and Zoom 

 
XVII. Planning Commission Tasks 

 
XVIII. Clerk Matters 

a. Payroll deadline is July 1st, 2025, at 10am! 
 

XIX. Adjournment  
 

Upcoming Meetings/Dates: 

• July 1, 2025, at 7pm  

• July 8, 2025, at 7pm Town Board Meeting 

******************************************************************************************* 
A quorum of the Planning Commission may be in attendance.  No Planning Commission discussion or 
action will be taken. 
Navigate to: https://zoom.us/j/3134376987?pwd=V3VRRkJKblUxeUY1elJBdmVNUmUrdz09 
  

https://zoom.us/j/3134376987?pwd=V3VRRkJKblUxeUY1elJBdmVNUmUrdz09


3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



  
 ROBERT A. ALSOP 
 Attorney at Law 
 Direct Dial: (612) 337-9224 
 Email: ralsop@kennedy-graven.com 

 
 
 
May 21, 2025 

  
 
 
Mr. Ridge Oien 
9235 Upper 240th Street West 
Lakeville, MN  55044 
 
Re: Eureka Township v. Ridge Oien 
 Court File No. 19HA-CV-22-3155 
 
Dear Mr. Oien: 
 
As you know, our law firm represents Eureka Township (“Township”).  The purpose of this letter is to 
put you on notice that you are in violation of the Settlement Agreement incorporated in the Order for 
Dismissal filed in the above-referenced matter on September 25, 2023.  I am enclosing a copy of the 
Order for Dismissal with the Settlement Agreement attached thereto. 
 
Although you were initially compliant with the terms of the Settlement Agreement, complaints from 
residents and personal observations by Township officials have confirmed that you are currently in 
violation of the Settlement Agreement.  In particular, you have permitted excessive number of vehicles, 
trucks, trailers, and illegal exterior storage to be present on your property located at 9235 Upper 240th 
Street West.  You should also be aware the Township considers your parking cars, trucks and 
trailers on the street adjacent to your property as a violation of the Settlement Agreement.  The 
excessive number of your vehicles, trucks, trailers and other illegal exterior storage are violations of 
Sections 184-4, 240-18G and 177-6 of the Township’s ordinances.   
 
Please be advised that if all the illegally parked or stored vehicles, trailers, trucks and other illegal 
outdoor storage is not removed from your property and the adjacent street by June 3, 2025, I will be 
asking the Court to hold you in contempt, seek an order requiring your compliance and also ask for 
an award of costs and attorneys’ fees as permitted under the terms of the Settlement Agreement.   
 
You should also be aware that other additional violations of the Township’s ordinances have been 
observed on your property.  Such violations include but are not limited to the massive amounts of 
wood brought onto your property and apparently turned in large piles of mulch .  A number of 
animals have also been observed either being kept on your property or allowed to illegally roam on 
your property.  
 

11



The Town Board would like you to attend its meeting on June 10, 2025, to discuss your anticipated 
compliance with the Settlement Agreement as outlined herein as well as the additional violations 
that have been observed on your property.  If you refuse to meet with the Town Board, the 
Township intends to pursue all available remedies to ensure your compliance with the Settlement 
Agreement and the Township’s ordinances.     

KENNEDY & GRAVEN, CHARTERED 

Sincerely, 

Robert A. Alsop 

Robert A. Alsop 

RAA 
Enclosure 

cc: Township 

12



 
Planning Memorandum 
 
DATE: June 4, 2025 
 
TO:  Eureka Township Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: Nate Sparks, Town Planner 
 
RE:  Plan Amendments 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Township has been engaged in a public process related to the establishment of a 
Commercial-Industrial land use designation within the Comprehensive Plan.  Also, the Township 
has been evaluating the possibility of introducing situations where greater residential density 
could be allowed in limited cases.  The existing Comprehensive Plan would require 
amendments to allow these changes to occur.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing 
on May 27.  The amendments are now available for review by the Town Board. 
 
EXISTING LAND USE MAP 
The Existing Land Use Map is proposed for revision to more fully reflect different uses that are 
present in the Township.  The map identifies locations where existing businesses are.  It also 
combines certain categories of uses. 
 
AGGREGATE RESOURCES MAP 
The current plan has the aggregate resources placed on the Future Land Use Map.  A new map 
just showing this has been made. 
 
COMMERCIAL-INDUSTRIAL LAND USE 
The current Comprehensive Plan does not allow for the establishment of a Commercial-
Industrial designation.  The proposed amendments would allow for this.  Text justifying the 
location and types of uses has been prepared.  There were existing land use policies that were 
moved into this section on Pages 3-11 and 3-12. 
 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
The map was updated to show areas where this land use could be placed.  It was attempted to 
make this area as precise as possible, as to not give the appearance of excessive use of this 
land use designation.  Too much commercial-industrial could be viewed as out of character with 
the Agricultural designation that the Town has to follow per the Met Council rules.  A limited 
amount could be viewed as being compatible.   
 
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY 
The current plan speaks of “one house per quarter quarter” in multiple places.  This corresponds 
with the existing Town zoning.  Changing this to 1 unit per 40 acres allows the Township to 
consider alternative density zoning in certain areas that can be defined through a Township 
zoning amendment process.   This would allow for the Town to possibly identify areas of 
alternative zoning standards in certain instances. The transfer of development rights program is 
still listed in the plan. 

13



 
The Planning Commission recommended these changes be removed from the amendment. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended to the Town Board that the 
Commercial-Industrial land use amendments be approved. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
If approved by the Town Board, the plan would be submitted for the requisite review and 
comment procedure and then formally submitted to the Metropolitan Council. 
 

14



Eureka Township  
Dakota County  

State of Minnesota  

RESOLUTION 2025- 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO 
ESTABLISH A COMMERCIAL-INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DESIGNATION   

WHEREAS, Eureka Township (the “Township”) adopted a Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”) in 
accordance with all relevant requirements that was placed into effect on May 17, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, in the northern portion of the Township there are several existing business type 
uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is seeking to amend the Plan to include a new land use designation 
for Commercial-Industrial land use within the vicinity of these existing uses; and 

WHEREAS, this designation will allow for the Township to properly create zoning mechanisms 
to contain business uses within this designated area; and 

WHEREAS, this action will allow the Township to preserve its rural character; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public hearing on May 27, 2025 and 
recommended approval of the amendments; and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of Supervisors of Eureka 
Township hereby approved the attached Comprehensive Plan amendments and authorizes Town 
Staff to take the necessary steps to submit the amendments for review, comment, and 
consideration of approval. 

Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 

June 10 , 2025 by the Eureka Town Board. 

 

 

 

Town Board Chair 
 
 

Liz Atwater, Clerk/Treasurer 
 

15



 
 

 
Commercial-Industrial Land Use 
Eureka Township supports agricultural uses as the primary long-term land use within the  
community. The Town also seeks to permit agricultural-supportive land uses in this plan. To this  
end, the Town has identified areas where there are existing Commercial-Industrial businesses and  
areas that would allow for future businesses to be established. 

 
Some Agricultural/Horticultural service establishments are now allowed in the Township with a  
Conditional Use Permit. Eureka Township will be establishing a Commercial-Industrial zoning  
district for the purpose of establishing new commercial-industrial businesses that are supportive of  
the agricultural nature of the Township and serve community needs. 

 
The areas where commercial-industrial businesses may be located are depicted on the Future Land  
Use map. These areas were identified as properties near existing business uses and also along  
transportation corridors that can serve higher intensity uses. Uses that are within character of and  
serving the needs of the agricultural and residential nature of the community may be permitted by  
zoning within these areas. Such uses may include horticultural uses, agricultural processing,  
transportation, repair, storage, supportive sales, off-site service uses, and other similar types. Uses  
that require urban levels of services should not be located in these areas. Uses permitted by zoning  
should not be out of character with the nature of the vicinity. 

 
If not utilized as a Commercial-Industrial use, these properties should continue to be used in a  
manner consistent with the Agricultural designation. 

 
Commercial-industrial land use shall utilize the Commercial-Industrial Land Use Policies: 

a. The type and location of new commercial-industrial development should not  
substantially change the rural-agricultural character of the Township or jeopardize existing  
agricultural enterprises in the Township. 
b. New commercial-industrial development should occur in a manner that allows the  
Township to retain control over zoning and permitting, to include control over the type, size,  
and location of such businesses. 
c. New commercial-industrial development should minimize the conflict between 
commercial-industrial uses and other land uses. 
d. New commercial-industrial development should serve the needs of Eureka Township  
residents. 
e. New commercial-industrial development should be aesthetically pleasing. Strict 
performance standards must be created and enforced for building exteriors, parking,  
landscaping, ingress/egress routes, signage, screening/buffering, and other considerations. 
f. New commercial-industrial development must pay for the costs of its development, 
including public infrastructure necessary for the development. 
g. New commercial-industrial development must provide financial benefit to the  
Township through gained tax revenue. 
h. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on the  
quality of life of Eureka residents. In determining quality of life impacts, such things as traffic  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5" 

16



 
 
 
 
 

 
congestion, noise, light pollution, objectionable odors, health risks, and safety risks should be  
considered. 
i. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on 
environmental quality. In determining environmental quality impacts, such things as air  
pollution, water quality, and wildlife habitat should be considered. 

Existing Provisions and Studies 
Some Agricultural/Horticultural service establishments are now allowed in Eureka Township with 
a Conditional Use Permit. Eureka Township does not have a Commercial-Industrial zoning district. 

 
In 2011, Eureka Township convened a task force to consider the potential need to designate areas 
in the township for commercial and industrial uses. The Task Force completed a Market Study for 
commercial and industrial uses in the Township, completed a Township-wide survey of 
landowners to determine interest in zoning areas for those uses, and met with representatives of 
the Metropolitan Council to discuss regional policies and requirements for designation of new 
zoning districts. The Task Force findings and recommendations included the following: 

•  The Market Study found little interest in commercial and industrial development in the 
Township in the near-term. This is due in part to the availability of over 300 acres of land 
that is ready for sale or lease for commercial and industrial development that has existing 
sewer and water services in nearby Lakeville and Farmington. 

•  The Township will need to identify its own "market niche" if it intends to compete for new 
commercial and industrial land uses with neighboring communities. 

•  The Task Force noted that the landowners that identified interest in potential development 
of new commercial and industrial uses are scattered throughout the Township. There is no 
concentration of interest that would allow identification of a potential zoning district for 
new commercial and industrial uses. 

•  Based on the study findings, the Task Force recommended that the Township not proceed 
at this time to identifying areas to zone for commercial and industrial development. The 
Task Force recommended that this could be studied in the future as market conditions and 
interests change. 

 

 
Aggregate Extraction 
Aggregate resources are part of Eureka Township's natural resource base, and are discussed in the 
Natural Resources section of the Comprehensive Plan (Chapter 2). The general location of the 
aggregate resources in the Township is identified on the 2040 Land Use Map. Mining of aggregate 
is allowed in the Township with an Interim Use Permit. The Eureka Township Mining Ordinance 
provides the standards for mining operations. 

 
Land use staging in areas with aggregate resources- to first consider the potential of an area for 
aggregate mining before urban development occurs - may become of greater importance in the 
future if the Township moves forward with planning for a future commercial-industrial area. Under 
the 2040 Land Use Plan and existing agricultural zoning, aggregate resources are adequateIy 
protected. 

 
The Natural Resource Goals and Policies in Chapter 2, as well as the Land Use Goals and Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold, 
Not Italic 

Formatted: Strikethrough 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0" 

17



 
 
 
 
 

 
Goals and Policies 
The following goals and policies will guide local decision-making related to land use. 

Land Use Goals 
1. Allow land uses that will maintain Eureka Township's rural character. 

2. Encourage protection of priority natural areas and natural resource corridors through 
local land use decisions. 

3. Promote the continuation of agriculture as the primary land use. 

4. Allow limited non-farm development provided that the negative impacts are minimized  
primarily within areas identified as Commercial-Industrial on the Land Use Map. 

5. Maintain the geographic boundaries of the Township. 

6. Provide for the economic availability, removal and processing of sand, gravel, and other 
aggregate materials vital to the economic well-being of the region. 

7. Protect solar resources and permit and regulate development of accessory residential 
and agricultural solar energy systems in the Township. 

Policies 
To achieve these goals, the Township will: 

 
1. Maintain Eureka Township's agricultural zoning of one housing unit per quarter- quarter 

section40 acres. 

2. Discourage pipelines, power lines, and other utility uses which fragment the Township's 
agricultural land, natural resources, aggregate resources, or that would otherwise be in 
conflict with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Maintain the Township's transfer of housing rights program to achieve the following 
goals: 

a. The program should be useful in achieving the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

b. The program should help relieve development pressure on large blocks of 
agricultural property. 

c. The program should allow property owners to gain revenue by selling housing 
rights. 

d. The program should be compatible with the Metropolitan Ag Preserves 
Program. Property owners should continue to have choices to use their land in 
ways that maintain eligibility in Ag Preserves. 

e. The program should protect opportunities for efficient and cost-effective land 
development for a time when public sewer and water services may become 
available. Such opportunities include the creation of a suitable 
commercial/industrial area in the Township. 

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

f. The program should be understandable by citizens. 

g. The program should respect landowners' rights to use their land in a way that 
does not significantly harm others' property nor the community's health, safety, 
welfare and morals. 

h. Administration of the program should not create an undue burden on Township 
government. 

4. Use Township Ordinances to minimize the visual and environmental impacts of 
development. 

5. Continue to allow agricultural/horticultural businesses and home occupations in a manner 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

6.  Conduct thorough study before guiding land for commercial-industrial use. Any future 
updates to the zoning ordinance that would affect commercial-industrial land use shall 
utilize the Commercial-Industrial Land Use Policies: 

a.  The type and location of new commercial-industrial development should not 
substantially change the rural-agricultural character of the Township or jeopardize 
existing agricultural enterprises in the Township. 

b.  New commercial-industrial development should occur in a manner that allows 
the Township to retain control over zoning and permitting, to include control over 
the type, size, and location of such businesses. 

c.  New commercial-industrial development should minimize the conflict between 
commercial-industrial uses and other land uses. 

d.  New commercial-industrial development should serve the needs of Eureka 
Township residents. 

e.  New commercial-industrial development should be aesthetically pleasing. Strict 
performance standards must be created and enforced for building exteriors, 
parking, landscaping, ingress/egress routes, signage, screening/buffering, and 
other considerations. 

f.  New commercial-industrial development must pay for the costs of its 
development, including public infrastructure necessary for the development. 

g.  New commercial-industrial development must provide financial benefit to the 
Township through gained tax revenue. 

h.  New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on the 
quality of life of Eureka residents. In determining quality of life impacts, such things 
as traffic congestion, noise, light pollution, objectionable odors, health risks, and 
safety risks should be considered. 

 
1. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on 

environmental quality. In determining environmental quality impacts, such things 
as air pollution, water quality, and wildlife habitat should be considered. 

19



 

20



Eureka Township  
Dakota County  

State of Minnesota  

RESOLUTION 2025- 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO 
ESTABLISH A COMMERCIAL-INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DESIGNATION   

WHEREAS, Eureka Township (the “Township”) adopted a Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”) in 
accordance with all relevant requirements that was placed into effect on May 17, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, in the northern portion of the Township there are several existing business type 
uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is seeking to amend the Plan to include a new land use designation 
for Commercial-Industrial land use within the vicinity of these existing uses; and 

WHEREAS, this designation will allow for the Township to properly create zoning mechanisms 
to contain business uses within this designated area; and 

WHERAS, the amendment to the plan also includes clarifications to the residential land use 
density requirements; and 

WHEREAS, these actions will allow the Township to preserve its rural character; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public hearing on May 27, 2025; and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of Supervisors of Eureka 
Township hereby approved the attached Comprehensive Plan amendments and authorizes Town 
Staff to take the necessary steps to submit the amendments for review, comment, and 
consideration of approval. 

Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 

June 10 , 2025 by the Eureka Town Board. 

 

 

 

Town Board Chair 
 
 

Liz Atwater, Clerk/Treasurer 

21



Regional Setting 

Location 
Eureka Township is located in the southwestern comer of Dakota County, Minnesota, on the fringe 
of suburban development in the Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan region. Eureka Township 
includes nearly thirty-six square miles, an area established through the U.S. Public Land Survey 
System (PLSS). The PLSS was a method used to survey lands in the Midwest and Westem United 
States during the mid-1800s. 

Unlike many townships in the metropolitan region which have had boundary changes over the 
years as nearby cities annexed land, Eureka Township's political boundaries largely remain along 
the PLSS boundaries. 

Regional Planning Designation 
Thrive MSP designates Eureka Township as an Agricultural community (Figure 1). Agricultural 
communities include areas with prime agricultural soils that are planned and zoned for long-term 
agricultural use. Regional policies expect Agricultural communities to limit residential 
development and adopt zoning ordinances and land use controls to maintain residential densities 
no greater than 1 housing unit per 40 acres on average. Agricultural communities are expected to 
manage land uses to prevent the premature demand of extension of urban services, so that existing 
service levels will meet demands. 

Eureka Township's Zoning Ordinance limits density to one single-family dwelling unit per each 
quarter-quarter section40 acres, except for areas of the Township where the zoning designation 
allows for greater density. In no case will the average density of new development within the 
Township exceed one dwelling unit per 40 acres. The Township has adopted this density 
standard to be consistent with its classification as an Agricultural community and to preserve 
eligibility for the Agricultural Preserves program for parcels in the Agriculture District. 

The Agricultural community designation is consistent with the Township's Strategic Vision, 
Zoning Ordinance and its goals and policies included in this 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update. 

Vision and Context 
Page 1-5 

22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eureka Township is strategically positioned to serve the growing demand for local agricultural 
products. 

■ Eureka's convenient location within the metropolitan region is a natural fit for the local 
foods movement. 

■ The Township has a diversity of farms already growing food for Twin Cities' farmers' 
markets and grocery stores. 

■ As the metropolitan area becomes more culturally 
diverse, farmers from immigrant communities are 
introducing their cultures' farming methods, crops, 
and markets. This diversity in farming contributes 
to Eureka Township's agricultural character. 

■ Nurseries are growing trees and other landscaping 
materials, serving local as well as wider markets. 

 
 

Eureka's location at the edge of the metropolitan region presents challenges as well as assets for 
farmers. Potential barriers for farmers of small scale and large scale operations alike include: 

■ High land and housing costs for new-entry farmers 
■ Active farmers reaching retirement age without a "next generation" farmer to take over 

the farm 
■ Lack of nearby processing facilities and farm-related services 
■ Lack of housing for seasonal workers and intern/apprentice housing 
■ Limited options for sale of products within Eureka Township (roadside stands or local 

market) 
■ Conflicts between agricultural and residential land uses. 

The Township seeks to support farms as viable businesses in Eureka Township, while also 
protecting the general health, safety and welfare of the community. The Township's land use 
regulatory authority can be used to help farmers capitalize on opportunities and overcome 
challenges. At the foundation of the Township's endorsement of farming is the agricultural zoning 
of one dwelling unit per 40 acresquarter-quarter section. As changes in the agricultural industry 
unfold, the Township will examine its policies and ordinances to avoid unintended or overly- 
burdensome restrictions that hinder the economic viability of farming. 

Animal feedlots are part of Eureka Township's agricultural base and contribute to the continued 
economic viability of agriculture in the Township. The Township plans to continue to allow for 
animal feedlots in Eureka while ensuring that feedlots are properly managed to protect public 
health and to maintain compatible land use relationships. Eureka Township's Zoning Ordinance 
contains standards for feedlot operations, including setbacks and animal waste management 
practices. 

23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Maintain Eureka Township's agricultural zoning of one housing unit per quarter- 
quarter section40 acres. 

2. Continue to support the Right to Farm when using generally accepted agricultural 
practices. The Township recognizes that with farming come smell, noise, dust, and 
slow-moving vehicles. 

3. Limit the subdivision of the Township's farmland for housing and other non-farm land 
uses. Allow limited non-farm development provided that the impact on other land uses 
is minimized. 

4. Provide information to residents of the potential conflicts or incompatibilities that can 
arise between development and agricultural uses. 

5. Provide for adequate separation of new non-farm houses from existing confined animal 
feedlots or manure storage facilities. 

6. Use local ordinances to support the commercial viability of farming. 
7. Work with County and State officials to improve programs that assess farmland at a 

lower tax rate. 
8. Encourage enrollment in farmland preservation programs. 
9. Encourage units of government, institutions, or other entities doing business in Eureka 

Township to consider local agricultural products when making purchasing decisions. 
10. Be receptive to adjusting local ordinances so that local farms can adapt to new trends 

in farming. 
11. Avoid fragmentation of farmland in order to support a "critical mass" of farms, making 

farming activity more viable in the Township through the zoning ordinance 
requirement for a minimum of one single-family dwelling unit per each quarter- quarter 
section. 

12. Utilize Township Ordinances to properly manage animal feedlots in order to protect 
public health and to maintain compatible land use relationships. 

Cultural Resources Goal 
1. Encourage the preservation of historic sites, including structures that contribute to the 

rural character of the Township. 

Policies 
To achieve this goal, the Township will: 

1. Encourage private owners to restore historically significant buildings. 
2. Encourage the preservation and/or rehabilitation of structures that contribute to the 

rural character of the Township, such as barns and silos. 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 

Agriculture Land Use, Zoning, and Permitted Uses 
The Township's land use goals and policies place priority on protecting its rural and agricultural 
character and promoting the economic viability of farming operations in the Township. The Land 
Use Plan guides the long-term land use in Eureka to continue as Agriculture through 2040. The 
goals and policies in the Natural, Agricultural and Cultural Resources chapter are consistent with 
the goals and policies for Land Use. 

 
All of Eureka Township is included in the Agriculture Zoning District identified in its Zoning 
Ordinance, and consistent with the Land Use Plan adopted in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan and 
proposed for the 2040 Plan. The district allows the following uses: all forms of commercial 
agriculture and horticulture; farm buildings, accessory structures, and drainage systems; forestry, 
grazing and gardening; public natural areas and parks, recreation areas and preserves; single- 
family residential units and accessory structures; historic structures; home occupations; and private 
dog kennels. Uses permitted with a Conditional Use Permit include: churches, cemeteries, airports, 
schools, local government facilities and other government-owned facilities; agriculture service 
buildings, public utilities, Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS), wireless communication 
towers and facilities. Uses permitted with an interim use permit include: mining and extraction 
operations, airstrips, and automotive graveyards that comply with the ordinance. 

Residential Land Use 

Density 
Eureka Township is designated as an Agricultural Area for regional planning purposes by the 
Metropolitan Council. Regional policy includes guidance that the Agricultural areas should 
develop at a density of no greater than one dwelling unit per 40 acres. Eureka Township's 2040 
Land Use Plan and agricultural zoning of one dwelling unit per quarter-quarter section40 acres, 
except for areas of the Township where the zoning designation allows for greater density. With 
the stipulation that in no case will the average density of new development within the Township 
exceed one dwelling unit per 40 acres. 

 
It is important to note that there are residential lots in Eureka Township that were created before 
the 1 one unit per quarter-quarter40 acres zoning restriction came into effect. Some of these lots 
have existing housing units while others do not. The Township and Metropolitan Council have 
recognized that there are lots of record in Eureka Township that do not meet the density standards 
of today's zoning ordinance, but that such lots may still have grandfathered housing rights. The 
Township's zoning and land use policies support an average maximum density of 1 one dwelling 
unit per quarter-quarter section40 acres, and arewhich is consistent with Regional policies. 

Regional Growth Forecasts-Township's Land Use Plan Consistent with 
Forecast Growth 
Through its Strategic Vision process completed in 2007, the Township made considerable efforts 
to identify the number of unused housing rights in order to understand the Township's growth 
potential. The Strategic Vision report identified were approximately 280 unused housing rights 
available in the Township. The Housing Eligibilities Transfer Task Force (2013) completed a 
follow-up inventory, and found that there are at least 200 eligible housing rights remaining in the 
Township. 

25



 
 
 
 

 
Commercial-Industrial Land Use 
Eureka Township supports agricultural uses as the primary long-term land use within the  
community. The Town also seeks to permit agricultural-supportive land uses in this plan. To this  
end, the Town has identified areas where there are existing Commercial-Industrial businesses and  
areas that would allow for future businesses to be established. 

 
Some Agricultural/Horticultural service establishments are now allowed in the Township with a  
Conditional Use Permit. Eureka Township will be establishing a Commercial-Industrial zoning  
district for the purpose of establishing new commercial-industrial businesses that are supportive of  
the agricultural nature of the Township and serve community needs. 

 
The areas where commercial-industrial businesses may be located are depicted on the Future Land  
Use map. These areas were identified as properties near existing business uses and also along  
transportation corridors that can serve higher intensity uses. Uses that are within character of and  
serving the needs of the agricultural and residential nature of the community may be permitted by  
zoning within these areas. Such uses may include horticultural uses, agricultural processing,  
transportation, repair, storage, supportive sales, off-site service uses, and other similar types. Uses  
that require urban levels of services should not be located in these areas. Uses permitted by zoning  
should not be out of character with the nature of the vicinity. 

 
If not utilized as a Commercial-Industrial use, these properties should continue to be used in a  
manner consistent with the Agricultural designation. 

 
Commercial-industrial land use shall utilize the Commercial-Industrial Land Use Policies: 

a. The type and location of new commercial-industrial development should not  
substantially change the rural-agricultural character of the Township or jeopardize existing  
agricultural enterprises in the Township. 
b. New commercial-industrial development should occur in a manner that allows the  
Township to retain control over zoning and permitting, to include control over the type, size,  
and location of such businesses. 
c. New commercial-industrial development should minimize the conflict between 
commercial-industrial uses and other land uses. 
d. New commercial-industrial development should serve the needs of Eureka Township  
residents. 
e. New commercial-industrial development should be aesthetically pleasing. Strict 
performance standards must be created and enforced for building exteriors, parking,  
landscaping, ingress/egress routes, signage, screening/buffering, and other considerations. 
f. New commercial-industrial development must pay for the costs of its development, 
including public infrastructure necessary for the development. 
g. New commercial-industrial development must provide financial benefit to the  
Township through gained tax revenue. 
h. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on the  
quality of life of Eureka residents. In determining quality of life impacts, such things as traffic  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5" 

26



 
 
 
 
 

 
congestion, noise, light pollution, objectionable odors, health risks, and safety risks should be  
considered. 
i. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on 
environmental quality. In determining environmental quality impacts, such things as air  
pollution, water quality, and wildlife habitat should be considered. 

Existing Provisions and Studies 
Some Agricultural/Horticultural service establishments are now allowed in Eureka Township with 
a Conditional Use Permit. Eureka Township does not have a Commercial-Industrial zoning district. 

 
In 2011, Eureka Township convened a task force to consider the potential need to designate areas 
in the township for commercial and industrial uses. The Task Force completed a Market Study for 
commercial and industrial uses in the Township, completed a Township-wide survey of 
landowners to determine interest in zoning areas for those uses, and met with representatives of 
the Metropolitan Council to discuss regional policies and requirements for designation of new 
zoning districts. The Task Force findings and recommendations included the following: 

•  The Market Study found little interest in commercial and industrial development in the 
Township in the near-term. This is due in part to the availability of over 300 acres of land 
that is ready for sale or lease for commercial and industrial development that has existing 
sewer and water services in nearby Lakeville and Farmington. 

•  The Township will need to identify its own "market niche" if it intends to compete for new 
commercial and industrial land uses with neighboring communities. 

•  The Task Force noted that the landowners that identified interest in potential development 
of new commercial and industrial uses are scattered throughout the Township. There is no 
concentration of interest that would allow identification of a potential zoning district for 
new commercial and industrial uses. 

•  Based on the study findings, the Task Force recommended that the Township not proceed 
at this time to identifying areas to zone for commercial and industrial development. The 
Task Force recommended that this could be studied in the future as market conditions and 
interests change. 

 

 
Aggregate Extraction 
Aggregate resources are part of Eureka Township's natural resource base, and are discussed in the 
Natural Resources section of the Comprehensive Plan (Chapter 2). The general location of the 
aggregate resources in the Township is identified on the 2040 Land Use Map. Mining of aggregate 
is allowed in the Township with an Interim Use Permit. The Eureka Township Mining Ordinance 
provides the standards for mining operations. 

 
Land use staging in areas with aggregate resources- to first consider the potential of an area for 
aggregate mining before urban development occurs - may become of greater importance in the 
future if the Township moves forward with planning for a future commercial-industrial area. Under 
the 2040 Land Use Plan and existing agricultural zoning, aggregate resources are adequateIy 
protected. 

 
The Natural Resource Goals and Policies in Chapter 2, as well as the Land Use Goals and Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold, 
Not Italic 

Formatted: Strikethrough 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0" 

27



 
 
 
 
 

 
Goals and Policies 
The following goals and policies will guide local decision-making related to land use. 

Land Use Goals 
1. Allow land uses that will maintain Eureka Township's rural character. 

2. Encourage protection of priority natural areas and natural resource corridors through 
local land use decisions. 

3. Promote the continuation of agriculture as the primary land use. 

4. Allow limited non-farm development provided that the negative impacts are minimized  
primarily within areas identified as Commercial-Industrial on the Land Use Map. 

5. Maintain the geographic boundaries of the Township. 

6. Provide for the economic availability, removal and processing of sand, gravel, and other 
aggregate materials vital to the economic well-being of the region. 

7. Protect solar resources and permit and regulate development of accessory residential 
and agricultural solar energy systems in the Township. 

Policies 
To achieve these goals, the Township will: 

 
1. Maintain Eureka Township's agricultural zoning of one housing unit per quarter- quarter 

section40 acres. 

2. Discourage pipelines, power lines, and other utility uses which fragment the Township's 
agricultural land, natural resources, aggregate resources, or that would otherwise be in 
conflict with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Maintain the Township's transfer of housing rights program to achieve the following 
goals: 

a. The program should be useful in achieving the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

b. The program should help relieve development pressure on large blocks of 
agricultural property. 

c. The program should allow property owners to gain revenue by selling housing 
rights. 

d. The program should be compatible with the Metropolitan Ag Preserves 
Program. Property owners should continue to have choices to use their land in 
ways that maintain eligibility in Ag Preserves. 

e. The program should protect opportunities for efficient and cost-effective land 
development for a time when public sewer and water services may become 
available. Such opportunities include the creation of a suitable 
commercial/industrial area in the Township. 

28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

f. The program should be understandable by citizens. 

g. The program should respect landowners' rights to use their land in a way that 
does not significantly harm others' property nor the community's health, safety, 
welfare and morals. 

h. Administration of the program should not create an undue burden on Township 
government. 

4. Use Township Ordinances to minimize the visual and environmental impacts of 
development. 

5. Continue to allow agricultural/horticultural businesses and home occupations in a manner 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

6.  Conduct thorough study before guiding land for commercial-industrial use. Any future 
updates to the zoning ordinance that would affect commercial-industrial land use shall 
utilize the Commercial-Industrial Land Use Policies: 

a.  The type and location of new commercial-industrial development should not 
substantially change the rural-agricultural character of the Township or jeopardize 
existing agricultural enterprises in the Township. 

b.  New commercial-industrial development should occur in a manner that allows 
the Township to retain control over zoning and permitting, to include control over 
the type, size, and location of such businesses. 

c.  New commercial-industrial development should minimize the conflict between 
commercial-industrial uses and other land uses. 

d.  New commercial-industrial development should serve the needs of Eureka 
Township residents. 

e.  New commercial-industrial development should be aesthetically pleasing. Strict 
performance standards must be created and enforced for building exteriors, 
parking, landscaping, ingress/egress routes, signage, screening/buffering, and 
other considerations. 

f.  New commercial-industrial development must pay for the costs of its 
development, including public infrastructure necessary for the development. 

g.  New commercial-industrial development must provide financial benefit to the 
Township through gained tax revenue. 

h.  New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on the 
quality of life of Eureka residents. In determining quality of life impacts, such things 
as traffic congestion, noise, light pollution, objectionable odors, health risks, and 
safety risks should be considered. 

 
1. New commercial-industrial development should not have an adverse impact on 

environmental quality. In determining environmental quality impacts, such things 
as air pollution, water quality, and wildlife habitat should be considered. 

29



EUREKA TOWNSHIP MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To:   Eureka Town Board  

From:   Hannah Rybak, WSB 

Date:   June 4, 2025 
   Town Board Meeting June 10, 2025 

WSB Project No. 027571-000, Phase 003 

Request: Request for approval of a conditional use permit to allow a fiberoptic 
utility compound to be constructed at the property located at PID: 13-
02300-76-030.  

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Applicant:  Sam Davis, LTS Communications  

Owner:   Michelle Nicolai  

Location:  Southwest of the intersection of 255th St. W and Essex Ave. 
PID: 13-02300-76-030 

Existing Land Use / Agriculture; zoned Agricultural District   
Zoning: 

Surrounding Land North:  Agriculture; zoned Agricultural District  
Use / Zoning:  East:  Residential; zoned Agricultural District  

South:  Agriculture; zoned Agricultural District  
West:  Agriculture; zoned Agricultural District 
 

Comprehensive Plan: The Comprehensive Plan 2040 guides this property for Agricultural land 
use. 

Deadline for Agency Application Date:   05-01-25 
Action: 60 Days:    06-29-25 
 Extension Letter Mailed: N/A 
   120 Days:   08-28-25 
 

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO THE REQUEST 

1. Overview.   

The Applicant is requesting a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow the construction of an 
unmanned fiber optic utility compound. The proposed use would fall under “public utility 
and public service structures” which are conditional uses in the Agricultural District. Public 
utility is defined in the Town Code as follows: “Persons, corporations, or governments 

30



supplying gas, electric, transportation, water, or landline telephone service to the general 
public.” 

The MN Commerce Department approved a Certificate of Authority for LTS 
Telecommunications Services Inc. to offer “Local Niche Service” on a statewide basis. “Local 
Niche Service” is defined as follows: "Local niche service" refers to point-to-point 
connections between end-user locations within a service area and any telecommunications 
services under the commission's jurisdiction that do not fall within the definition of local 
service or the definition of interexchange service. 

The purpose of the proposed installation is to construct an Integrated Line Amplifier (ILA) 
station to provide a quality signal between data centers. The Applicant provided the 
following statement related to the purpose of the application:  

The fiber infrastructure requires placement of line amplifiers that helps improve the 
network by providing additional signal stability, help carry information, and reduce 
latency. These routes are part of the fiber optic backbones that help facilitate modern 
day communications. This purpose of this application is to place a utility compound and 
fiber optic equipment shelter for the line amplifying equipment. 

This fiber infrastructure can be viewed in a similar way to the previous telephone lines 
using copper to carry information and data. Communication infrastructure has now 
turned to fiber to be able to handle the capacity and speeds required by current 
technology. Most people and operations today use all kinds of internet applications to 
communicate (i.e. phone calls, video calls, streaming, emails, messaging). 

This project would not be a direct fiber connect for Eureka residents, however overall 
data services would be enhanced by the in-line-amplifier (ILA). 

The Applicant will be leasing a 300’ x 300’ easement area from the property owner. The 
proposed infrastructure is located in the northeast corner of the easement area. The site 
plan shows a proposed building pad and a secondary building pad for a future building. The 
current proposed building is 23’ 8” x 36’, and will be approximately 13 feet tall. The future 
building will be the same size or slightly smaller than the proposed first building.  

The proposed installation includes a proposed generator and associated pad, as well as a 
secondary generator pad for a future generator. The generators would be utilized only in 
emergency situations or loss of power. The generators would be tested quarterly for a short 
period of time during each test. The generators would not be contained inside of a 
structure. The project also includes connections into the right of way for an electrical power 
source and fiber optics.  

The 300’ x 300’ easement area would be enclosed by a security fence. The fence would 
consist of a 8-foot chain link fence with three strands of barb wire at the top. Overall fence 
height would be 9 feet. The proposed fencing is compliant with Article IX: Fences.   

The proposed site lighting includes building mounted lighting over each access door. The 
lighting would be hooded and directed downward, and the lighted area would not exceed 
the boundaries of the easement area. The proposed lighting is compliant with Section 240-
55: Lighting.  

31



  

2. Ordinance Authority. 

Chapter 240, Section 7 Agricultural District provides the allowable uses in the Agricultural 
District.  

Chapter 240, Section 12 Setbacks and Lot Dimensions, provides minimum setback 
requirements.  

Chapter 240, Section 31 Conditional Use Permits provides requirements for the issuance of 
conditional use permits.   

Chapter 240, Article IX provides requirements for fences.  

 
3. Consistency of the Request with the Standards for Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

1) The use will not create an excessive burden on existing parks, schools, streets 
and other public facilities and utilities which serve or are proposed to serve the 
area.  

The proposed utility compound will not create a burden on any public facilities 
or utilities. The installation of the in-line amplifier would enhance overall data 
services. Criterion met.  

2) The use will be sufficiently compatible with or separated by adequate distance or 
screening from adjacent agriculturally or residentially zoned or used land so that 
existing property will not be depreciated in value and there will be no deterrence 
to development of vacant land. 

The easement area is located over 500 feet from the only immediately adjacent 
dwelling. In addition to the distance, there is a stand of existing trees on the 
residential property that will add a visual barrier.  

The generators on site would be used only in emergency or power outage 
situations, and the noise level is minimal. Documentation for the proposed 
model of Generac generator provided indicate noise levels of between 72 and 
77 dB(A), which is comparable to a vacuum cleaner or the noise created by a 
vehicle driving 65 mph, from a distance of 25 feet away.  

It is not anticipated that the utility compound will negatively impact any 
adjacent properties. Criterion met.  

3) The structure and site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse 
effect upon adjacent properties. 

The visual impact of the chain link fence surrounding the easement area will be 
minimal. Each proposed building totals 846 square feet. The color of the 
buildings will be neutrals; either gray or tan. This is a small installation in the 
context of the 39 acre site. Criterion met.  

4) The use is reasonably related to the existing land use. 

32



The proposed public utility use is an allowable conditional use within the 
Agricultural District. Criterion met.  

5) The use is consistent with the purpose of this chapter and the purposes of the 
zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed use. 

The plans for the utility compound comply with all relevant Zoning Ordinance 
requirements. Criterion met.  

6) The use is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan of the Township. 

Criterion met.  

7) The use will not cause traffic hazards or congestion. 

The compound will be unmanned, so vehicle trips to and from the site will be 
extremely minimal. Criterion met.  

4. Review by Other Jurisdictions  

The plans were provided to the following jurisdictions:  

• Dakota County Physical Development Division – No permits necessary from the 
county.  

• North Cannon River Watershed – The NCRWMO does not issue grading permits. Be 
sure to follow Eureka Township Ordinance Chapter 120 related to erosion control and 
stormwater management.  

• Dakota County Access Permit required  
• Dakota County ROW Permit required  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission reviewed the application and held the public hearing at their June 3, 
2025 meeting. Several neighboring property owners spoke at the public hearing to ask questions.  

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the requested 
conditional use permit to allow the proposed fiberoptic compound to be constructed at the 
subject property, subject to the following conditions:  

1. A building permit shall be obtained prior to construction of the equipment shelter.  
2. A separate building permit shall be required prior to construction of the second 

equipment shelter. The second equipment shelter must be in substantial conformance 
with the plans provided with this application. The size shall not exceed  852 square feet 
and 13 feet in height, unless a conditional use permit amendment has been approved.  

3. The fencing shall be installed as shown, and shall comply with all requirements of Article 
IX: Fences.  

4. The lighting shall be installed as shown, and shall comply with Section 240-55: Lighting.  
5. The noise generated from the site shall comply with all requirements of Chapter 173: 

Noise, and MPCA noise requirements.  

33



6. Any generator malfunction or damage should be immediately addressed by LTS 
Communications, to ensure that noise generated does not exceed allowable levels.  

 

POTENTIAL ACTION 

1. Approval (with or without conditions) of the Request. In the event of a decision for 
approval (with or without conditions), the Town Board may refer to the resolution that was 
included in your packet. 

2. Denial of the Request. In the event of a decision for denial, the Town Board should direct 
staff to prepare a resolution for denial, and should clearly state its reasoning.  

3. Request Additional Information and Continue the Meeting. The Applicant appears to have 
provided enough information for the Town Board to make a decision to approve or deny the 
request. Should the Town Board request additional information from the Applicant, the 
Town Board should continue the meeting until a later time. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Draft Resolution of Approval  
Location Map 
Application Packet 
 
 

34



Eureka Township  
Dakota County  

State of Minnesota  

RESOLUTION 2025-   
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
FIBEROPTIC UTILITY COMPOUND TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT THE PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT PID:   13-02300-76-030 

WHEREAS, Eureka Township received a request from the Applicant, Derrick Warren/Sam 
Davis, LTS Communications, on behalf of property owner Michelle Nicolai, on May 1, 2025, for 
a conditional use permit to allow a fiberoptic utility compound to be constructed at the subject 
property; 

Property is legally described as:  

THE EAST HALF OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF  
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 113, RANGE 20, DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA  

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use would fall under “public utility and public service structures” 
which are conditional uses in the Agricultural District; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and considered the request based on the related 
documents shown in the application at their meeting on June 3, 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Board reviewed the application and considered the reports, documents 
and other materials presented; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Board can approve a conditional use permit if it finds that the standards 
for granting a conditional use permit as described in Chapter 240, Section 31 of the Eureka Town 
Code have been met. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Eureka Town Board approves the 
Applicant’s request for a conditional use permit to allow a fiberoptic utility compound to be 
constructed at the subject property, as shown on the plans submitted with the application.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town Board’s approval of the 
conditional use permit is contingent on the following:  

1. A building permit shall be obtained prior to construction of the equipment shelter.  

35



2. A separate building permit shall be required prior to construction of the second 
equipment shelter. The second equipment shelter must be in substantial conformance with 
the plans provided with this application. The size shall not exceed  852 square feet and 13 
feet in height, unless a conditional use permit amendment has been approved.  

3. The fencing shall be installed as shown, and shall comply with all requirements of Article 
IX: Fences.  

4. The lighting shall be installed as shown, and shall comply with Section 240-55: Lighting.  

5. The noise generated from the site shall comply with all requirements of Chapter 173: 
Noise, and MPCA noise requirements.  

6. Any generator malfunction or damage should be immediately addressed by LTS 
Communications, to ensure that noise generated does not exceed allowable levels.  

 

 

 

 

Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 

                             , 2025 by the Eureka Town Board. 

 

 

 

Town Board Chair 
 
 

Liz Atwater, Clerk/Treasurer 
 

36



Exhibit A

37



Exhibit B 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



1

Sam Davis

From: Bentley, Todd <Todd.Bentley@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>

Sent: Thursday, April 24, 2025 2:23 PM

To: Sam Davis

Subject: FW: Dakota County Rd 80, Access Driveway - Unmanned ILA shelter, MMI-Nicolai-Castle 

Rock MN-SD to MN

Attachments: Castle Rock MN - Michelle Nicolai 255th St W 300'x300' PRELIM LE - Copy.pdf; aerial-

rd80.jpg

Categories: CRITICAL

CAUTION: This email was sent from outside of Ledcor’s network. Please be careful while clicking links, opening attachments, or 

replying to this email.  

 

Hi Sam,  

 

All you need from Dakota County is an access permit on our online permit system and submit a drawing.  

 

 

Todd (T.J.) Bentley 

Right of Way and Permits Manager 

 

 
Transportation 

2800 160th St. W 

Rosemount, MN 55068 

952-891-7115 

todd.bentley@co.dakota.mn.us  

 

 

 

From: Laberee, Erin <Erin.Laberee@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 2:43 PM 

To: Bentley, Todd <Todd.Bentley@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US> 

Cc: Howard, Todd <Todd.Howard@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US> 

Subject: FW: Dakota County Rd 80, Access Driveway - Unmanned ILA shelter, MMI-Nicolai-Castle Rock MN-SD to MN 

 

Hi TJ, 

 

Could you look into this request below?  

 

Thank you, 

 

Erin 

 

From: Sam Davis <Sam.Davis2@ledcor.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 9:50 AM 

To: Hwy <Hwy@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US> 

Cc: Laberee, Erin <Erin.Laberee@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>; Tim Miller <Tim.Miller@ledcor.com>; Sam Davis 

<Sam.Davis2@ledcor.com>; Derrick Warren <Derrick.Warren@ledcor.com>; Greg Warford 

<C.Greg.Warford@ledcor.com>; Braxton Doshier <Braxton.Doshier@ledcor.com> 

Subject: Dakota County Rd 80, Access Driveway - Unmanned ILA shelter, MMI-Nicolai-Castle Rock MN-SD to MN 

 

WARNING: External email. Please verify sender before opening attachments or clicking on links. 

  

Good morning – we are in process of initiating a CUP with Eureka Township and they directed us to 

contact Dakota County regarding a driveway permit for our project. Below is more project detail – but 

45



2

please give me an email or call back so we can confirm if a permit is needed. And, if needed, what 

additional detail you need for review. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

Location: County Road 80 / 255th St W (address TBD) 

Coordinates:   44.579432,  -93.177685 

 

Our project is for an unmanned fiber optic equipment shelter and utility compound. The access driveway 

would be for initial construction and then occasional maintenance as required at the site. Attached is a 

general site plan and a few images of current conditions. We are proposing to utilize the current field 

access drive from the RoW to the property. 

 

Initial site plan is for a 16’ aggregate driveway. No water or sewer utilities are needed at the site. Power 

will be coordinated and brought to the site (TBD). There is an existing fiber line here as well. 

 

 

 

46



3

 
 

Thank you,  

 

Sam J. Davis 

Project PermiEng – Site Infrastructure 

LTS Managed Technical Services 

14400 The Lakes Blvd. Suite 100 Bldg C, Pflugerville, TX 78660 

w 859-286-8160 

www.ledcor.com 

FORWARD. TOGETHER. 

 

Note: This email and its attachments may contain information protected by state or federal law or that 

may not otherwise be disclosed. If you received this in error, please notify the sender immediately and 

delete this email and its attachments from all devices.  

47



CUP Application narrative: The fiber infrastructure requires placement of line amplifiers 
that helps improve the network by providing additional signal stability, help carry 
information, and reduce latency. These routes are part of the fiber optic backbones that 
help facilitate modern day communications. This purpose of this application is to place a 
utility compound and fiber optic equipment shelter for the line amplifying equipment. 
  
This fiber infrastructure can be viewed in a similar way to the previous telephone lines 
using copper to carry information and data. Communication infrastructure has now turned 
to fiber to be able to handle the capacity and speeds required by current technology. Most 
people and operations today use all kinds of internet applications to communicate (i.e. 
phone calls, video calls, streaming, emails, messaging). 
 
This project would not be a direct fiber connect for Eureka residents, however overall data 
services would be enhanced by the in-line-amplifier (ILA). 

48



49



50



LEASE EXHIBIT

SURVEY NOTE
THIS SITE PLAN WAS GENERATED WITHOUT THE USE
OF A SURVEY. PROPERTY LINES AND EASEMENTS
SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ARE ESTIMATED.

EXHIBIT A OPTION
AGREEMENT
EASEMENT PREMISES TO MIDDLE MILE
INFASTRUCTURE LLC

DAKOTA COUNTY MN PROPERTY ID: TBD
OWNER INITIALS:

DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

COORDINATES:
44.576056, -93.178922

51

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
100kW GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE DIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LV

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUX

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEASE EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
LE-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' WIDE ACCESS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' WIDE UTILITY/ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  COORDINATES: 44.576056, -93.178922 PARCEL ID: 130230076030

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESSEX AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
110' SETBACK FROM CENTERLINE OF 255TH ST W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' SETBACK FROM EAST PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SECOND PAD FOR FUTURE SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SECOND PAD FOR FUTURE GENERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 23'-4"X36' ILA SHELTER AND FOUNDATION PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAD AND GENERATOR



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

ENLARGED
SITE PLAN

 DRIVE ACCESS

52

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' MMI EASEMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' MMI EASEMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' PROPOSED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' PROPOSED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE TO SECOND PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
100kW GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE DIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LV

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUX

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 300'X300' GRAVEL YARD AND PARKING AREA. EXCAVATE EXISTING MATERIAL, RE-COMPACT SUBGRADE AND INSTALL 6" CLEAN #57 AGGREGATE WITH GEOTEXTILE FABRIC ON COMPACTED SUBGRADE ENTIRE COMPOUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERALL SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1" = 30' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 16'-0" WIDE ACCESS DRIVE. EXCAVATE EXISTING MATERIAL, RECOMPACT SUBGRADE AND INSTALL 6" COMPACTED #57 AGGREGATE BASE ON COMPACTED SUBGRADE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  COORDINATES: 44.576056, -93.178922 PARCEL ID: 130230076030

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESSEX AVE



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

53

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-02.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELTER AND HANDHOLE DISTANCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV TO SEV (2) 4" SCH, 80 PVC TYP)4" SCH, 80 PVC TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV TO KEV (2) 4" SCH, 80 PVC 4" SCH, 80 PVC              (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE #6 SOLID HMWPE .045MIL ORANGE                        TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV TO SHELTER (2) 4" SCH, 80 PVC 4" SCH, 80 PVC              (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H-FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC MARKER POLE FOR TRACER CABLE                 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEV TO SEV (2) 4" SCH. 80 PVC 4" SCH. 80 PVC              (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
207'

AutoCAD SHX Text
210'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  THIS IS A TYPICAL BUILDING LAYOUT TO REFLECT SHELTER AND HANDHOLE OFFSETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
500kW GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOAD BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'  MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
66'-5"



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PL 1" (x9)

PL 1" (x2)

PL 4" (x2)

PL 4" (x2) FOR
SERVICE DISCONNECT

54

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-09

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATION "B" KEV PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
121"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY BOX FOR FUTURE USE ONLY. PLEASE REFER TO DETAIL 2 ON SHEET C-02.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNCTION BOX FOR  ALL SITE POWER  (GENERATOR AUX CIRCUIT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR FEED TERMINATES HERE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNCTION BOX FOR ALL SITE LV CONDUIT TERMINATIONS  (FOR GENERATOR AND SITE GATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER GROUND BAR PIGTAIL DROP EXITS THE SHELTER HERE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY 2 OF 4 SHELTER GROUND PADS NEED TO BE GROUNDED. GROUND AT DIAGONAL CORNERS OF THE SHELTER. HERE IS THE LOCATION OF ONE OF THE GROUND PADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY 2 OF 4 SHELTER GROUND PADS NEED TO BE GROUNDED. GROUND AT DIAGONAL CORNERS OF THE SHELTER. HERE IS THE LOCATION OF ONE OF THE GROUND PADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notes: 1.  ALL EXTERIOR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED FOR A NEMA 3R RATING. 2.  DRILL (2) 1/8" WEEP HOLES IN THE BOTTOM OF THE ENCLOSURE OPPOSITE CORNERS. 3.  REFER TO SITE DRAWINGS REGARDING OSP CONDUIT ENTRANCE BOX INSTALLATION LOCATION. 4.  THE OSP FIBER CABLE PULL BOX SHALL INCLUDE AN OUTDOOR UV RATED LABEL THAT IS ORANGE WITH    BLACK LETTERING THAT IS 1" IN HEIGHT THAT READS "FIBER OPTIC CABLE" AND "CABLE DE FIBRA ÓPTICA." ÓPTICA." PTICA." 5.  GROUNDING BUSHING SHALL BE USED ON ALL SERVICE FEEDS. 6.  HVACS SHALL BE CONFIGURED WITH IP ADRESS. 7.  ALL EXTERIOR HARDWARE SHALL BE 316 STAINLESS STEEL UNLESS APPROVED BY META/MMI. 8.  ALL EXTERNAL CONDUIT SHALL USE WEATHERPROOF FITTING AND SEALING LOCKNUTS. 9.  ALL RIGID CONDUIT SHALL HAVE THREADED ENDS COLD GALVANIZED. 10. TVSS TERMINATIONS SHALL SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE TO THE NEC 240.21 TAP RULE. 11. HARDWARE USED TO SECURE HVACS TO WALL SHALL BEVELED WASHERS 12. ALL EQUIPMENT MOUNTING HARDWARE AND ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS SHALL BE TORQUED AND MARKED. 13. ALL LIFTING LUGS SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISCARDED ONCE SHELTER IS DELIVERED TO SITE. 14. ADD TEMPORARY NOTICE INSIDE DISCONNECT ON RED PAPER OR LABEL WITH WHITE OR BLACK LETTERING:    "NEUTRAL TO GROUND BOND NEEDS TO BE REMOVED IF ANOTHER SERVICE DISCONNECT IS USED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL GND PAD (G-202) (TYP. ALL 4 CORNERS) SCALE 1:4  

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA RESERVED FOR OSP CONDUITS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8  1/2-13 UNC

AutoCAD SHX Text
13/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 1/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMT, 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMT, 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC, 1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

  5"

SHIPPING SPLIT

TERMINATION BOX
SITE LOW VOLTAGE

GROUND RING;TYP.
GROUND HVAC TO BURRIED

UTILITY POWER

HALF NO.2

POWER

HALF NO.1

GENERATOR

FOUNDATION

3

13
'8

"

4 " 11'9 4
3

(

11'9

2 " )
1

3

MODLINE GAP

BUILDING FOUNDATION WIDTH

"527'10

3

8

" "

284" 23'8"

141 4 141 " 4

334 5
8 "

16
4"

  8"

55

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-09.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATION "B" KEV PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1)-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OFF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)-1" FROM GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4)-1" FROM  LOADBANK



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

EXTERIOR ELEVATION "C" KEV PLACEMENT

56

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 15/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
229 9/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
327 15/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY BOX FOR FUTURE USE ONLY. PLEASE REFER TO DETAIL 2 ON SHEET C-02.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY BOX. PLEASE REFER TO DETAIL 1 ON SHEET C-02.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSP ENTRY BOX. PLEASE REFER TO DETAIL 1 ON SHEET C-02.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA RESERVED  FOR OSP CONDUITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA RESERVED  FOR OSP CONDUITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA RESERVED  FOR OSP CONDUITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP FOR FUTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP FOR FUTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 4" OSP PVC CONDUIT OFF-SET USING HEAT BLANKET (SEE SHEET C-02.1)



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

EXTERIOR ELEVATION "C" KEV PLACEMENT

  (44 3
8 ")   (23 5

8 ")   (23 5
8 ")   (23 5

8 ")   (23 5
8 ")

  (128 3
8 ")

  (212 3
8 ")

  (296 3
8 ")

ELEVATION, EXTERNAL, WALL-C ONSITE SERVICE

3670 RHR

DOOR

  5"

136"

436" 36'4"

156" 13'0"

432" 36'0"

12'3"

  2"   2"

  6"

147" 11'4"
CAST WALL HEIGHT

506 3
8 "

342'2 8 "

FIBER CONDUIT ENTRY

57

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
255TH ST W  FARMINGTON, MN 55024  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHELLE NICOLAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/29/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/08/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM - NE CORNER 300X300

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED SHELTER TYPICALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-10.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL (1) 30"x48"x36"     KEV VAULT



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

5    TRUSS ROD AND BAND 4    EXTENSION ARM DETAILS

LINE POST ARM CORNER POST ARM

3    POST ATTACHMENT DETAILS

TENSION BAND
AND WIRE DETAIL ROUND POST DETAIL END OR GATE POST DETAIL

2    FABRIC FASTENING DETAILS
TOP OR BRACE RAIL ATTACHMENT POUND POST ATTACHMENT

N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

N.T.S.

1    CHAIN-LINK FENCE DETAIL
N.T.S.

58

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. * GAUGE STEEL TENSION WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-29



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
1     CANTILEVER SLIDE GATE DETAIL

N.T.S.

APPLY EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL
(FOR BOLLARDS IN HEAVY DUTY

CONCRETE AREAS ONLY)

4-1/2" DIAMETER STEEL PIPE
PAINTED YELLOW

FILLED W/ CONCRETE

CONCRETE
BACKFILL

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

1'-0"

9     STEEL/ CONCRETE BOLLARD
N.T.S.

GATE
6 HANGER ASSEMBLY8    MAGLOCK

5    BOTTOM GUIDE 4    ENLARGED DETAIL 3     SECTION

2    CANTILEVER SLIDE GATE PLAN
N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S. N.T.S.

MAGLOCK

GATE

7 CATCH ASSEMBLY
N.T.S.

9    PROXIMITY SENSOR
N.T.S.

#

1

1

1

1

1

X

X

X

X

PART #

M82FGBD

E-NL22-18

DSP-6LP

SPM-200

2BXC

8760

8770

6302UE

X

MANUFACTURER

ASSA ABLOY

DF SUPPLY, INC.
VEHICLELOOPS.COM

DIABLO CONTROLS, INC.

NEWMAR

MMTC INC.

BELDEN

BELDEN

BELDEN

X

GATE / SITE ACCESS CONTROL

DESCRIPTION

SECURITRON M82 MAGNALOCK

18 GAUGE PREFORMED CONTINUOUS DIRECT BURIAL 6' X 16'
LOOP WIRE (PAVE OVER) E-NL22-18-VEHICLE DETENTION
SAFETY LOOP

DSP-6LP, LOW POWER VEHICLE DETECTOR FOR EXIT LOOP

SITE POWER MONITOR (FOR GATE OPERATOR BATTERIES

OPEN-CLOSE PUSH BUTTON WITH PROTECTIVE COVER FOR WET
LOCATIONS, METAL ENCLOSURE H=4-1/2", W-2-3/4",D-2-3/4"

18/2 TP CABLE

18/3 TST CABLE

18/4 TP CABLE

CAT6, SHIELDED, OUTDOOR RATED

SOURCED BY

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

SITE G.C

1 CL-7234 Nationwide Industries Cantilever Gate Receiver, 4″,Ps, W/Locking Bar SITE G.C

SASM Securiton Shock Absorbing Strike Mount Kit (SASM) SITE G.C

PNK-AP-4A Automation Direct Proximity sensor, tubular, 18mm dia x 65mm body, PNP, N.O Output SITE G.C

U20302 IFM IFM L-Bracket: 18mm dia Proximity Sensor, Stainless Steel SITE G.C

1

1

1

59

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-07

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-30



KEYPAD

Bollard

Ground Line

Top of bollard to come
3" above key pad box

42"
Gooseneck

14"T x 8"Box

Bollard

6"x24"
Concrete

12"x24"
Concrete

Concrete footer
6" x 24" tub

Gooseneck8" W  Keypad Box

2" from face of Keypad box
to outside edge of Bollard

4" x 6" Bollard

Centerline of
Gooseneck/Keypad box

30" from center
of Bollards

to center of
Gooseneck

KEYPAD

DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

LOOKING DOWN BOLLARD TYPICAL DRAWING LAYOUT
BOLLARD

AND GOOSENECK KEYPAD
TYPICAL DRAWING LAYOUT

LOOKING DOWN BOLLARD TYPICAL DRAWING LAYOUT
BOLLARD

AND GOOSENECK KEYPAD
TYPICAL DRAWING LAYOUT

60

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARDS DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARDS DETAIL



**KEYPAD SUPPORTS
ENLARGED FOR
CLARITY

*THIS IS A TYPICAL DETAIL.

DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

61

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' TO  DRIVEWAY  EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYPAD GOOSENECK SUPPORT (CONC. SONO TUBE)  6" MIN. 24" DEPTH (SEE SHEET C-08) TOP AT FINISHED GRAVEL GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNER POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTRACTED  FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYPAD GOOSENECK SUPPORT (SAME AS BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD (SEE DETAIL C-08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) 1" PVC LOW VOLTAGE TO GO FROM KEY-PADS  AND MAGLOCK TO HUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGLOCK (1) 1"PVC CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" FROM CENTER OF CONCRETE PAD TO CENTER OF BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" FROM CENTER OF CONCRETE PAD TO CENTER OF BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTILEVER GATE RECIEVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SASM KIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING BAR PROXIMITY SENSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-08.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE GOOSENECK DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:   " = 5' 38" = 5' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'



Examples of Similar Compounds 

62



M
D5

00

1 of 6

Standby Power Rating

500 kW, 625 kVA, 60 Hz

Prime Power Rating*

450 kW, 563 kVA, 60 Hz

*EPA Certified Prime ratings are not available in the US or its Territories

Image used for illustration purposes only.

Codes and Standards

Not all codes and standards apply to all configura-
tions. Contact factory for details.

UL2200, UL6200, UL1236, UL489,
UL142

CSA C22.2, ULC S601

TM

BS5514 and DIN 6271

®

SAE J1349

NFPA 37, 70, 99, 110

NEC700, 701, 702, 708

NEMA ICS10, MG1, 250, ICS6,
AB1

ANSI C62.41

Powering a Smarter World

For over 65 years, Generac has been at the forefront of power gen-
eration, pioneering innovative solutions and unparalleled manufac-
turing excellence. At the heart of our reputation for superior quality
lies our commitment to meticulously designing and manufacturing
key components of our generators—ranging from alternators and
enclosures to base tanks, control systems, and cutting-edge com-
munications software.

Generac's gensets stand out for their unparalleled versatility and re-
liability. Engineered to offer a wide range of options and configura-
tions, they are tailored to meet the unique demands of virtually any
application, seamlessly adapting to its complexity. Our commitment
to reliability drives us to globally source only the most dependable
engines, selected through stringent criteria to ensure they perform
optimally under the toughest industrial conditions.

Beyond the sale, Generac's dedication to our customers extends to
comprehensive service support, for peace of mind and reliability
long after your purchase. Our commitment is to not only provide
state-of-the-art power solutions but also to ensure the enduring
success and satisfaction of our customers through ongoing sup-
port and service excellence.

MD500 | 15.2L | 500 kW
INDUSTRIAL DIESEL GENERATOR SET
EPA Certified Stationary Emergency

63



LEVEL 2 SOUND ATTENUATED ENCLOSURE
D15.2L Perkins, SD/MD500, SB/MB500

Part No. 0198210SSD
Rev. C 7/21/20

Generac Power Systems, Inc. | P.O. Box 8 | Waukesha, WI 53187
P: (262) 544-4811 © 2020 Generac Power Systems, Inc. All rights reserved. All specifications are subject to change without notice.

SO
UN

D 
DA

TA

1 OF 1

60Hz NO-LOAD, dB(A) DISTANCE: 7 METERS

MICROPHONE
LOCATION

OCTAVE BAND CENTER FREQUENCY (Hz)

31.5 63 125 250 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 dB(A)
FRONT 36 46 60 69 69 69 65 62 52 75
RIGHT 36 43 55 61 63 62 58 52 45 72
REAR 35 46 53 59 64 64 60 56 44 73
LEFT 35 43 55 61 66 65 62 57 47 72

AVERAGE 36 44 56 62 66 65 61 57 47 73

60Hz FULL-LOAD, dB(A) DISTANCE: 7 METERS

MICROPHONE
LOCATION

OCTAVE BAND CENTER FREQUENCY (Hz)

31.5 63 125 250 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 dB(A)
FRONT 43 51 62 68 73 71 71 66 64 77
RIGHT 43 49 63 64 70 64 62 57 56 74
REAR 41 49 59 63 69 65 62 57 51 74
LEFT 41 51 65 64 71 63 64 61 54 73

AVERAGE 42 50 62 65 71 66 65 60 56 75

• All positions at 23 feet (7 meters) from side faces of generator set.
• Test conducted on a 100 foot diameter asphalt surface.
• Sound pressure levels are subject to instrumentation, installation and testing conditions.
• Sound levels are ±2 dB(A).

70

72

74

76

78

FRONT RIGHT REAR LEFT

dB
(A

)

FRONT

LEFT

RIGHT

REAR

64



65



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

⌀

66

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR DIMENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  6-1" CONDUITS STUB UP AT LV BOX ON SLAB 3-1" CONDUITS TO LOAD BANK 1-1" CONDUIT STUB UP AT AUX ON SLAB



DWG 11 x 17

 REVISIONSHEET NUMBER

DRAWING No. REV DATE DESCRIPTION DES DFT CHK APP
REVISIONSREFERENCE DRAWINGS

DESCRIPTION

LTS Telecommunications

14400 The Lakes Blvd.
Pflugerville, TX 78660

(811)

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

CALL TOLL FREE
DIGALERT

Services (USA) Inc.

PREPARED FOR:

Middle Mile Infrastructure
PREPARED BY:

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

67

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHTSVILLE HWY 365 S LITTLE ROCK, AR 72206

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR DIMENSIONS



EUREKA TOWNSHIP MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To:   Eureka Town Board  

From:   Hannah Rybak, WSB 

Date:   June 4, 2025 
   Town Board Meeting June 10, 2025 

WSB Project No. 027571-000, Phase 004 

Request: Request for a text amendment to Chapter 165 Mining  
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Applicant:  OMG Midwest, dba Minnesota Paving and Materials  

Property Owner: LeRoy Chard  

 

OVERVIEW  

The Applicant provided a narrative describing several sections of Chapter 165: Mining that they 
desire to amend. WSB staff has evaluated the proposed revisions in the context of the existing 
Mining Ordinance. A comparison table outlining the same or similar provisions found within the 
codes of other communities has also been created and is included in your packet. The full 
reasoning provided by the Applicant can be found in the Applicant’s narrative. Staff offers an 
evaluation for each proposed amendment below.  

Note:  

Text the Applicant has proposed to be removed is indicated with strikethrough text.  

Text the Applicant has proposed to be added is indicated with underlined text. 

AMENDMENT 1  

Request: Removal of the below provision.  

165-4 B. No new Level 3 mines will be permitted until an existing Level 3 mine in the Township 
has ceased operating and completed all reclamation.  

Staff Analysis: In Eureka Township, Level 3 mines are defined as: “operations that will exceed 10 
acres of excavated area to a maximum depth to be determined by the approved site plan but 
not to exceed one foot above the highest water table elevation expected unless the end use is 
to be a lake or a wetland. In addition, the proposed mining plan must undergo a technical 
review by the Department of Natural Resources, Division of Lands and Minerals. Compliance 
with reclamation standards is required. An EAW is required for this level of permit.”  

The prohibition on additional Level 3 mines appears to be a mechanism for Eureka Township to 
limit the number of the highest impact mines within the community. This is not uncommon for 
communities to do this.  For example, some communities allow mining only within a specific 

68



overlay district, which is a limited area of the community. Eureka Township does not limit 
mining geographically in this manner; as it is permitted as a conditional use permit in nearly all 
areas of the community due to the single-district zoning. Staff finds that it is perfectly 
reasonable and common to cap the number of Level 3 mines. When a Level 3 mine closes, a new 
property owner, anywhere within the community, could apply and go through the approval 
process.  

In the future, Eureka Township could explore the idea of adopting a mining overlay district if 
desired. This may be a more appropriate manner in which the Town could exercise discretion on 
the locating of new mines, as this would be through Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
Amendment processes. 

AMENDMENT 2  

Request: Allow a prior EAW to be utilized for a new IUP on a previous mining site.  

165-6, A, 3. Level 3 permit. This permit applies to operations that will exceed 1 0 acres of 
excavated area to a maximum depth to be determined by the approved site plan but not to exceed 
one foot above the water table unless the end use is to be a lake or a wetland. In addition, the 
proposed mining plan must undergo a technical review by the Department of Natural Resources, 
Division of Lands and Minerals. Compliance with reclamation standards is required. An EAW is 
required for this level of permit._A_prior EAW may be utilized for purposes of this section. 

Staff Analysis: The proposed provision to be added is not reasonable. Conditions may change over 
time. If mining operations have ceased and there is intent to re-establish mining operations, all 
requirements of establishing a new mine are applicable. This is the only way to ensure that current 
conditions and impacts are evaluated prior to any approval.  

AMENDMENT 3 

Request: State that an EAW is required only for mines 40 acres in size or greater.  

165-11, F. Within 30 days of receipt of the registered engineer's findings and recommendations, 
the Planning Commission, together with the engineer, shall prepare an environmental assessment 
worksheet (EAW), according to Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4410. An EAW shall be required on any 
mines larger than 40 acres in size. After this process is completed, the Town Board shall determine 
within 30 days whether an environmental impact statement (EIS) is required. 

Staff Analysis: The Applicant’s request in this case is consistent with MN Rules and with the other 
communities evaluated in the attached spreadsheet. EAWs are generally not required for mines 
under 40 acres in size. However, a community is able to impose stricter standards than State 
Statute provides. Eureka Township contains sensitive natural resources, and also does not have a 
mining overlay district to ensure that mining is consolidated into specific geographic areas. Given 
these considerations, staff finds the requirement for the Level 3 mine classification to complete 
an EAW, regardless of size, to be reasonable.   It should be noted, however, that the State only 
requires a mandatory EAW when a mine is 40 acres in size and such an EAW would have to be 
discretionary. 

69



AMENDMENT 4  

Request: Add a variance as an option rather than satisfying all interim use permit (IUP) procedural 
requirements for a mining permit.  

165-11, L. The Town Board shall approve the permit application or variance, deny the permit 
application or variance or approve the permit application or variance with modification. 
Modifications may include additional restrictions. 

Staff Analysis: A variance is not intended to be utilized to subvert requirements of another land 
use approval. Each requirement for an IUP serves a purpose and are an important part of the 
review process. Further, granting of a variance requires a finding that there is a practical difficulty 
associated with the request. The definition within the Town Code of a practical difficulty is as 
follows: "Practical difficulty," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means the 
land in question cannot be put to a reasonable use if used under the conditions of this article; 
the plight of the applicant is unique to the land and not created by the applicant; and the 
variance, if granted, will not adversely affect the essential character of the locality or other 
adjacent land. Economic consideration alone shall not constitute a practical difficulty.  A variance 
should not be utilized for a procedural requirement, as there would be no practical difficulty to 
be found.  

AMENDMENT 5  

Request: Add a provision allowing recyclable materials to be crushed and mixed on site for up to 
100 working days per year, and remove the 25% cap on imported materials.  

165-13 B. B. Source of materials. Only minerals from the site shall be processed at the mineral 
extraction facility; subject, however, to the following exceptions: 

(1) Recyclable concrete and recyclable asphalt may be crushed and mixed on site if the crushing 
and mixing do not exceed 100 working days per calendar year. 

(2) The operator may import off-site minerals onto the subject property for the purpose of mixing 
with minerals from the subject property. provided the imported minerals on an annual basis do 
not exceed 25% of the minerals extracted from the subject property on an annual basis. Accessory 
uses may not exceed 25% off-site materials used in conjunction vvith each specified accessory 
use; therefore off-site minerals may not be aggregated to a single accessory use, allowing a 
specific accessory use to exceed 25% of off-site minerals used in conjunction with the specific 
accessory use. 

Staff Analysis: Importing of recycled and off-site materials for processing greatly increases the 
intensity of operations at a mining site. In terms of the communities compared in the attached 
spreadsheet, there are a mix of regulations:  

• Waterford Township: prohibits all processing  

70



• May Township: processing is subject to an additional CUP approval, applicant must 
provide an estimate of the amount of materials to be processed and limits stockpiling 
based on processing capacity  

• Rosemount: Minimum of 70% aggregate processing and 30% recycled aggregate 
processing 

A community is able to impose limits on processing based on the needs of the community. Given 
that Eureka Township does not limit mining to a specific area, it is understood that mining can be 
located near incompatible uses, such as residential dwellings. Processing of an unlimited amount 
of off-site materials and the crushing and mixing of concrete and asphalt lends itself to the 
creation of nuisances that could negatively impact adjacent property owners. The allowance of 
25% off-site materials is more than some communities allow and on par with some others.  

AMENDMENT 6 

Request: Change the required mining setback from a dwelling from 1,000 feet to 300 feet.  

165-13, M. Setbacks. No extraction activity may occur within 300 1,000 feet of any dwelling 
(absent approval of the neighboring landowner) and within 50 feet of any adjacent property line, 
road right-of-way or public utility. Screeners, crushers, other processing equipment and 
manufacturing equipment may not be located closer than 1,000 300 feet from a dwelling (absent 
approval of the neighboring landowner) nor closer than 100 feet from any adjacent property line, 
road right-of-way or public utility. Setbacks from an existing dwelling shall take precedence over 
setbacks for road right-of-way, adjacent property line and public utility. If the processing 
equipment is placed within an enclosed structure, the Town Board may consider shorter setback 
distances. Grading plans affecting pipelines or powerline corridors will be evaluated on a case-by-
case basis. The Town Board may waive setback requirements when the common boundary area 
of an adjoining property is also a legal mining operation, the common boundary is not within 300 
1,000 feet of a residence (absent approval of the neighboring landowner), and both property 
owners of adjacent mining operations have agreed to a common reclamation plan and have a 
written agreement with the Township establishing responsibility for reclamation. Any existing 
approved setback reduction in an existing approved interim use permit continues to have 
approved status. 

Staff Analysis: The requested setback reduction is similar to the communities in the comparison 
table, whose setbacks from dwellings range from 100 to 500 feet. Some communities have an 
increased setback for processing. A key difference here is the utilization of a mining overlay 
district. Because Eureka Township does not have a specific area of the township where mining is 
allowable, additional safeguards for adjacent land uses are appropriate. The 1,000 foot setback 
requirement is not from an adjacent property line, it is from an adjacent dwelling. Given Eureka 
Township’s current density (1 unit per 40 acres), the mining setback from a residential dwelling 
could be viewed as reasonable.    

AMENDMENT 7  

Request: Reduce the instances where berming is required by the cod.  

71



165-13, O. Berming. Earthen berms shall be constructed in accordance with the Mine Safety and 
Health Administration standards. along all road rights-of-way. In the instance where the setback 
from a residence applies under §165-1GM, then, in addition, earthen berms shall be constructed 
along the adjoining property line. Berms shall provide screening of the mining activity from the 
right-of-way and any adjoining property line on which a berm is required. A combination of berms 
and other screening which has no written objection from any owners of real property located 
within 300 1,000 feet of the proposed extraction activity may satisfy this requirement, subject to 
Town Board approval of the design. In the absence of such an alternate design, berms shall be a 
minimum of eight feet in height. All berms shall have a minimum slope of 3:1 and have a silt fence 
at the base on the side closest to adjacent property. The silt fence shall be maintained until 
vegetation is established, at which time it shall be removed. 

Staff Analysis: The berming standards are in place to minimize the effects of mining operations 
from view of public rights-of-way and adjacent properties. All other communities researched 
included berming requirements, and some even require a full viewshed analysis due at the time 
of an application for a mining permit. Staff finds value in the berming ordinance, as written.  

AMENDMENT 8  

Request: Removal of the below provision.  

165-13, P. Heights. The maximum height of any excavation, temporary crushing equipment, or 
temporary stockpiles located less than 1,000 feet from the property line shall be a minimum of 
eight feet below the average height of the adjacent berms within the mandatory setback. 

Staff Analysis: This height limitation applies only to equipment and temporary stockpiles that are 
located within 1,000 feet of the property line; there is no height limitation for these items if they 
are located outside of the required setback. This requirement is reasonable in the context of the 
lot sizes within Eureka Township. Items that can be seen from public right-of-way and neighboring 
properties should be appropriately screened if they do not meet the minimum setback.  

AMENDMENT 9  

Request: Increase the amount of time to remove structures and grade the site following 
termination of excavation operations.  

165-13, T, 2, c. Within twelve three months after the termination of excavation operations or 
within six three  months after the expiration of the interim use permit, the operator or landowner 
shall dismantle buildings and structures incident to mining operation and shall grade the 
excavation site as well as complete all rehabilitation on the site as provided in the approved 
reclamation plan. 

Staff Analysis: It is a reasonable expectation that a mining operation that has an expired permit, 
ceased activity, or closed would engage in the proper steps to remove the equipment and 
structures related to mining in a prompt amount of time.  This is required in a variety of durations 
in other communities’ ordinances.  The intent of these requirements is to not let an inactive mine 

72



remain in a state of disuse for a lengthy period of time.  It is noted that three months is on the 
shorter side of the range in area codes but was determined to be a reasonable duration by 
Eureka’s policy officials.  Six, twelve, and eighteen months are also fairly common standards.  The 
Town may wish to review this code in the future to ensure that adequate time is given to 
permittees to re-establish the site to the Township’s satisfaction.  As it stands, it appears that the 
timelines established by code were intentional to ensure a swift resolution to these processes.   

AMENDMENT 10  

Request: Remove requirement of at least 4 inches of topsoil to “a depth sufficient to establish 
vegetation to prevent erosion”  

165-13, U, 4, C. All banks shall be surfaced with topsoil of a quality at least equal to the topsoil of 
land areas immediately surrounding and to a depth sufficient to establish vegetation to prevent 
erosion at least four inches. All banks shall also be surfaced with sodding or seeding and mulching. 
Mulch must be properly anchored. 

Staff Analysis: Waterford Township has a similar requirement to the requested amendment: 
Topsoil material shall consist of suitable plant growth materials, organic matter content, and 
thickness to support adequate plant growth. May Township required a topsoil depth of 4-8 inches. 
Scott County and Rosemount require a topsoil depth of 6 inches. The current Eureka Township 
requirement is consistent with most other communities in the table.  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission reviewed the application and held the public hearing at their June 3, 
2025 meeting. The meeting was attended by many residents, who all spoke in opposition of the 
request. Many letters in opposition were also received ahead of the Planning Commission 
meeting. Two people spoke in support of the application; a representative of the Applicant and a 
representative of the property owner.  

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend denial of the requested text 
amendment package.  

 

POTENTIAL ACTION 
1. Denial of the Request. In the event of a decision for denial, the Town Board may refer to the 

resolution included in your packet.  

2. Request Additional Information and Continue the Meeting. The Applicant appears to have 
provided enough information for the Town Board to make a decision to approve or deny the 
request. Should the Town Board request additional information from the Applicant, the 
Town Board should continue the meeting until a later time. 

3. Approval of the Request. In the event of a decision for approval, the Town Board should 
direct staff to draft an ordinance adopting the amendments.  

73



ATTACHMENTS  

Draft Resolution of Denial  
Public Comment Letters  
Application Packet  
Comparison Table  
 
 

74



Eureka Township  
Dakota County  

State of Minnesota  

RESOLUTION 2025- 
 

RESOLUTION DENYING A REQUEST FOR A  

TEXT AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 165: MINING  

WHEREAS, Eureka Township received a request from OMG Midwest, dba Minnesota Paving 
and Materials, on behalf of LeRoy Chard, for a set of proposed text amendments to Chapter 165: 
Mining on May 1, 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held the public hearing and reviewed and considered the 
request based on the related documents shown in the Applicant’s application at their special 
meeting on June 3, 2025 and recommended denial of the proposed text amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board reviewed and considered the reports, documents, testimony, 
Planning Commission recommendation, and other materials presented; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board finds that the requested amendments are not consistent with the 
Township’s current policies and goals related to balancing mining operations with other uses 
within the Town. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Eureka Town Board hereby denies the 
Applicant’s request for a text amendment to Chapter 165: Mining.  

 

 

Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 

                             , 2025 by the Eureka Town Board. 

 

 

 

Town Board Chair 
 
 

Liz Atwater, Clerk/Treasurer 
 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



Exhibit B 

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



Eureka Current Requirement Proposed Change Waterford Township May Township/Washington Co. Scott County Rosemount 
No new Level 3 mines will be permitted until an 
existing Level 3 mine in the Township has ceased 
operating and completed all reclamation. 

Remove this provision to allow unlimited Level 
3 mines 

Levels of mines not designated. Mining limited to 
land within the overlay district Levels of mines not designated Levels of mines not designated 

EAW required for Level 3 mine permit. Allow a prior EAW to be utilized. Nothing relevant on this. Nothing relevant on this. Nothing relevant on this. 

LARGE SCALE MINERAL EXTRACTION: Miner
al extraction at a scale that would require a 
mandatory environmental impact statement 
as described in Minnesota Rules, part 
4410.4400 subpart 9 
nonmetallic mineral mining.

EAW required for any Level 3 mine permit. 
Require an EAW for level 3 mine permits 40 
acres or larger in size EAW/EIS required per MN Rules 4410

EAW required to excavate 40+ acres to a 
mean depth of 10 feet or more 
EIW required to excavate 160+ acres to a 
mean depth of 10 feet or more 

Mitigation plans outlined in any EAW or EIS may 
be required as minimum conditions in any IUP. EAW/EIS required per MN Rules 4410

Only minerals from the site shall be processed at the 
facility, except for imported materials up to 25% of the 
minerals extracted from the site annually 

Allow recyclable concrete and asphalt to be 
crushed and mixed on site of the crushing and 
mixing do not exceed 100 working days per 
calendar year

Remove 25% cap for imported materials 

Ancillary Uses Prohibited: Any uses of the site that 
are not mineral extraction or one of the accessory 
uses listed are expressly prohibited, including but not 
limited to: 
Storage and processing of recycled asphalt and/or 
aggregate products
Asphalt or concrete production
Casting yard 
Retail sales of product to the public 

Processing subject to an additional CUP 
approval
Processing equipment must be screened
No requirements related to sourcing of 
materials
Recycling allowed with approved CUP, 
estimate of amount of materials to be 
processed must be submitted. Stockpiling 
limited to the amount that can be resonably 
processed in two consecutive mining 
seasons. Nothing relevant on this. 

Minimum of 70% aggregate processing and 
30% recycled aggregate product processing. 

1000 foot setback from dwellings

300 foot setback from dwellings, allow for 
lesser setback with permission from 
neighboring property owner 500 foot setback from dwellings 

200 feet from occupied structures not owned 
by the operator or owner 
100 feet from any contiguous property 
subdivided into residential lots 

Mining setback 100 feet from the boundary of any 
adjoining zoning district where such operations 
are not permitted and 30 feet from adjoining 
zoning district where such operations are 
permitted. 
Processing setback 500 feet from a residential 
dewlling. Setbacks from residential structures 
located on the proeprty for which a waiver is 
signed by the property owner are exempt from 
this requirement. 
Processing setback 500 feet from the property 
line of any proeprty that is located in a rural 
residential, suburban or urban expansion 
district. 

Residential Zoning District: 350 feet 
Industrial, Commercial or Inst: 150 feet
Ag: 30 feet 
Inhabited residence not located in a Res. 
Zoning District: 200 feet 

Berms required along all road rights-of-way and 
adjoining residences 

Require berming in accordance with "Mine 
Safety and Health Administration standards", 
remove berm requirement from all ROW and 
adjoining residences 

The mining shall be screened from any public ROW 
and adjacent residences through a combination of 
existing stands of trees, berming and installed 
landscaping designed by a licensed professional. 
Viewshed analysis required. 

Screening is discretionary to "minimize visual 
impact on surrounding properties" 

To minimize problems of dust and noise and to 
shield Mining Operations from public view, a 
screening barrier may be required between the 
Mining Operations and abutting rural residential, 
residential, suburban or urban expansion 
districts. A viewshed analysis is required. 

The mining shall be screened from any 
public ROW or urban development through a 
combination of existing stands of trees, 
berming and installed landscaping. 

The maximum height of any excavation, temporary 
crushing equipment, or temporary stockpiles located 
less than 1000 feet from the property line shall be a 
minimum of 8 feet below the average height of the 
adjacent berms within the mandatory setback. Remove this provision 

The height of all equipment, stockpiles and all other 
operations, except those described in subsections 
F4b and F4c of this section, wihtin the permitted 
mineral extraction operation shall not exceed 60 feet No height requirements in ordinances No height requirements in ordinance

Height of all equipment, stockpiles, and all 
other operations shall not exceed 60 feet. 
The City Council may approve a limited 
number of stationary conveyors no taller 
than 65 feet. The floating dredge shall not 
exceed 75 feet. 

Within three months after the termination of 
excavation operations or within three months after the 
expiration of the IUP, the operator or landowner shall 
dismantle buildings and structures incident to mining 
operation and shall grade the excvation site as well as 
complete all rehabilitation on the site as provided in 
the aproved reclamation plan. 

Change 6 months to 12 months and 3 months 
to 6 months 

Within 18 months of the reclamation of each phase, 
all buildings, strucutres and plants incidental to that 
phase of operation shall be dismantled and 
removed, unless utilized in a future phase. 

All buildings or other structures not otherwise 
allowed per the Washington County 
Development Code shall be removed from the 
proeprty and the property restored in 
conformance with the reclamation plan within 
6 months after expiration or abandonment 

Within 3 months after final termination of a 
mining operation, within three months after 
abandonment of such operation for a period of 
six months, within three months after the 
expiration of a mining permit, all buildings, 
structure and lants incidenal to such operation 
shall be dismantled and removed. An extension 
may be granted upon agreement between 
County and operator. 

Within 18 months of the reclamation of each 
phase, all buildings, strucutres and plants 
incidental to that phase of operation shall 
be dismantled and removed, unless utilized 
in a future phase. 

All banks shall be surfaced with topsoil of a quality of 
at least equal to the topsoil of land areas immediately 
surrounding and to a depth of at least 4 inches. 

Change 4 inches to "a depth sufficient to 
estbalish vegetation to prevent erosion" 

Topsoil material shall consist of suitable plant 
growth material, organic matter content, and 
thickness to support adequate plant growth. 

Min topsoil depth depends on slope. Range 
from 4 to 8 inches. 

Reclaimed areas shall be surfaced with soil of a 
quality at least equal to the topsoil of land areas 
surrounding and to a depth of at least 6 inches. 

Additional topsoil may be retained to ensure 
that a minimum of six (6) inches of topsoil is 
placed on all areas reclaimed and restored 
as dry ground

Exhibit A 

159



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

 
TOWN BOARD MEETING 
May 13, 2025 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
Call to Order 
The Eureka Township Town Board meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Mark Ceminsky 
and the Pledge of Allegiance was given. 
 
Supervisors Present:  Mark Ceminsky, Tim Pope, Dan Ames, Pete Storlie, and Allen Novacek (7:07pm).   
Others Present:  Liz Atwater, Dan Heyda, Randy Wood, Dan Doyle, Keith Jones, Alex Turner, Cary 
Reiswig, Mark Nelson, Brandon Romann, Kathleen Kauffman. 
Zoom Attendance:  Sauber, Gloria Belzer, Ralph Fredlund, Cindy, Jackie, Bob, Kelly Romsdahl, Julie, 
Deb, Ashley and Terry, Jeff Otto. 
 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
The following items were added to the agenda: 

• XIII.  New Business 
F. Zoom 
G. Round Table 
H. Town Hall Tree 

 
Motion:  Vice Chair Pete Storlie moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Supervisor Ames seconded 
the motion.    Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Public Comment 
*The opinions expressed in public comments are those of the authors and may not represent the official 
positions of the Town Board.  The Town Board does not control or guarantee the accuracy of information 
contained in the comments, nor does it endorse the views expressed. 
 
Chair Ceminsky opened the floor for public comment and stated that if anyone has a comment 
regarding any agenda items, now is your time to speak. Chair Ceminsky closed the floor for public 
comment. 
 
Reports  
Planning Commission- Melanie Storlie 
Planning Commission Chair, Melanie Storlie, shared items that were discussed at the May Planning 
Commission meeting.  A full summary is provided in the Planning Commission meeting minutes and 
is available for viewing at the Town Hall and on the website.   
 
CUP Reviews 
5E Properties 
Clerk Atwater reported that no complaints have been filed, and CUP review fee has been received. 
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to pass the review for 5E Properties. Vice Chair Storlie seconded the 
motion.    Motion carried 4-0. 

160



 
Mark Nelson 
Clerk Atwater reported that no complaints have been filed, and CUP review fee has been received. 
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to approve the review of Mark Nelson’s CUP. Vice Chair Storlie 
seconded the motion.    Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Permits 
Romann, Brandon, 23535 Jersey Court, PID 13-64000-02-011, *Building Permit  
Mr. Romann explained that he is building a shed, but the dimensions will now be 32x42, but in the 
same area.   
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to approve a new 32x42 accessory building for Brandon Romann, 
23535 Jersey Court, PID 13-64000-02-011, with the dimension changing as signed off.  Supervisor 
Novacek seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Complaints 
9235 Upper 240th Street W, Lakeville- Ridge Oien 
Mr. Oien was not in attendance at the meeting. The Town Board discussed complaints about a 
property  and the previous court order. 
 
Motion:  Vice Chair Storlie moved to send it to the Attorney to review the court order for action and 
to authorize two Board members to go visit the site and document what is going on and report back 
at the June meeting.  Supervisor Pope seconded the motion.   Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The Town Board members to conduct the site visit and report back to the Clerk/Treasurer are 
Supervisor Ames and Chair Ceminsky.   
 
Motion:  Vice Chair Storlie moved if there is action to be taken, the attorney move forward.   Chair 
Ceminsky seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Citizen Inquiry 
Mark Buffington- 6725 245th Street W 
Mr. Buffington stated his concerns about building code enforcement on his property between 2008 
and 2011.    He provided documents for the Town Board to review. 
 
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to authorize our attorney to undertake the enforcement action in Mr. 
Buffington’s required permits. Vice Chair Storlie seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-2 with 
Supervisors’ Pope and Novacek voting “Nay”. 
 
Sheriff’s Report 
Sheriff Deputy Shearer reported the Sheriff’s department is fully staffed for general duty deputies. 
The Town Board discussed getting an electronic speed trailer for some of the roads in the Township.   
The Deputy also shared for residents to lock their property buildings.   
 
Road Report 
Chair Ceminsky reported concerns with Chub Lake Road crossing, which included the road sinking, it 
has water running over it, it is soft, and the road has narrowed.  Dakota County advised if the 
Township is going to keep the road open, the culvert will need to be replaced.  The group tasked at 

161



the last meeting did an inspection and forwarded questions to the Attorney about the future and 
options of the road/crossing.  The Town Board discussed the current water issues on the road and 
discussed temporarily closing the road.   
   
Motion: Vice Chair Storlie moved to temporary close Chub Lake Road.  Close the gates, post it, notify 
all the first responders, school bus, garbage, families, until we get the questions back that you have 
asked of the attorney and reevaluate at the June meeting.  Chair Ceminsky seconded the motion. 
Motion carried 4-1 with Supervisor Pope voting “Nay”. 
 
Chair Ceminsky reported that 235th from Highview to the Township line has been graveled and has a 
4% crown.    Gravel has been started on 240th from Cedar to Dodd, and should be done in the next 
week or two.   
 
Consent Agenda 
Motion:  Chair Ceminsky moved to approve items A, B, C, D and E, on the consent agenda for the 
Township meeting minutes.   Vice Chair Storlie seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0.    
Items were as follows: 

a. 3.25.2025 Town Board Minutes (reorganization) 
b. 4.8.2025 Special Town Board Minutes 
c. 4.8.2025 Town Board Minutes 
d. 4.29.2025 Special Town Board Minutes- 1pm 
e. 4.29.2025 Special Town Board Minutes- 5pm 

 
Treasurer’s Report 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater read the Treasurer’s Report as of April 30, 2025: Total of all accounts was: 
$1,172,913.45. 
 
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to accept the Treasurer’s Report as presented.  Supervisor Pope 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope – Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark 
Ceminsky – Aye; Dan- Aye.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Net Pay and claims 
The Clerk presented payroll in the amount of $4,076.08 and claims in the amount of $83,606.67 for 
payment.  See page 7 for a list of claims.   
 
Motion: Vice Chair Storlie moved to approve the net pay and claims as presented.   Chair Ceminsky 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope – Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark 
Ceminsky – Aye; Dan- Aye.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Receipts and Disbursements 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater presented the April receipts in the amount of $366,419.13 and 
disbursements in the amount of $379,963.06. 
 
Other Treasurer Reports 
Clerk Atwater reviewed the Cash Control Statement, Schedule 1, PTO, and Investments with accrued 
interest with the Town Board. 
 

162



CD Recommendations 
General Fund CD Term:  5.16.2025 
Motion: Vice Chair Storlie moved to move the CD that matures on 5.16.2025, current value $26,847.94, 
to move into the Royal Credit Union money market account. Supervisor Pope seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope – Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark Ceminsky – Aye; Dan 
Ames- Aye. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Road and Bridge- Asphalt and Hard Roads CD Term: 6.1.2025 
Motion: Vice Chair Storlie moved to move the CD that matures on 6.1.2025, current value $162,457.29, 
to move into the Royal Credit Union money market account. Supervisor Pope seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope – Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark Ceminsky – Aye; Dan 
Ames- Aye. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The Town Board discussed getting a financial advisor for consulting.   The Town Board directed the 
Clerk/Treasurer to do research on financial representation to be presented at the next meeting.     
 
Unfinished Business 
Orderly Annexation Agreement- Conversation with Cities 
Waiting for information from the Attorney- Table until the June meeting.   
  
MPM/Chard Mining Reclamation 
Waiting for information from the Attorney- Table until the June meeting.   
 
Hamburg-Chub Lake Crossing  
Waiting for information from the Attorney- Table until the June meeting. 
 
Farmington  220th Street Road Agreement 

Waiting for information from the Attorney- Table until the May 20th meeting. 
 
Request for Bids- Road Maintenance 

Chair Ceminsky reported the Request for Bids for Road Maintenance 2025-2028 will be published in 
the Newspapers and posted at the Town Hall and the website.  The bids received will be opened and 
reviewed at the Town Board’s June 3 meeting.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing- May 27, 2025- Map 

The Town Board reviewed the proposed map from WSB for the Public Hearing on changes to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Map attached on page 8. 
 
Motion:  Chair Ceminsky moved to approve the map as adjusted, today’s date 5.13.2025, to move onto 
the Public Hearing.  Supervisor Novacek seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0.    
 
 
New Business 
Resolution 2025-19 Counting write-in votes for local elective office 
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Resolution 2025-19- Resolution for counting write-in 
votes for local elective office.  Supervisor Novacek seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0.    
 

163



Box Culverts   
Chair Ceminsky explained that the Township is required to clean out the Box Culverts in the 
Township. Todd Howard, from Dakota County, recommended to wait until August, when the ground 
is easier to work on.   
 
PIN13-01100-51-013 *Tiny Home 
The Town Board discussed the building “Tiny Home” that is on the listing for this property.   
Motion: Chair Ceminsky moved for the Clerk to draft a letter citing the code violations under Zoning.   
We want him to come to the June meeting to address those issues.  Vice Chair Storlie seconded the 
motion with the friendly amendment to include in the letter, either he built it without a building 
permit, or he moved it in without a move in permit, he didn’t have a building right.   There are multiple 
possible zoning issues.  Chair Ceminsky accepted the friendly amendment.  Motion carried 5-0.   
 
Building/Permit Violations 
The board discussed procedures for addressing minor zoning violations, such as unpermitted signs. 
They agreed that Clerks may send letters in these cases, provided proper documentation is 
maintained. The Board emphasized that Supervisors are not actively seeking violations but are 
obligated to address any obvious issues they observe during their duties. 
 
Road Gravel   
Chair Ceminsky discussed exploring new recycled material for roads that would be traditionally 
cheaper than the current gravel.  He is going to investigate its viability and durability, in Henderson 
where it is currently being used.    
 
Chair Ceminsky also reported on the current state of the Township’s roads and stated it would require 
over 72,000 tons of materials to restore a 4% crown on all roads.  The Town Board could consider 
taking out a loan to address the issue, potentially saving on maintenance costs in the long run. The 
Town Board agreed that this aggressive approach might be necessary to catch up on road 
maintenance but will need to be researched and explained the benefits to Township residents before 
proceeding. 
 
Zoom   
Vice Chair Storlie stated that Minnesota State Statutes allows for remote meetings, but they are not 
required as an option.   The Town Board voted previously to not allow Planning Commissions or 
Supervisors to attend meetings remotely.  In addition, the statute has requirements that must be met 
to allow a remote meeting.  This will be discussed at the round table meeting, and then further 
discussion with the Town Board at the June meeting.   
 
Round Table   
Vice Chair Storlie requested the Open Meeting Law is discussed and on the agenda.  
 
Town Hall Tree   
The Town Hall has an Ash tree that is dying on the property and should be removed. 
 
Motion:  Chair Ceminsky moved to have Pope Enterprise take the tree down and grind the stump.  
Supervisor Novacek seconded the motion.  Supervisor Pope stated he is recusing himself as he has a 
vested interest and moved to the audience.  Motion carried 4-0.    

164



 
Supervisor Pope returned to his desk.   
 
Clerk Matters 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater discussed the research the Clerks have been conducting on what 
municipalities do for processes.   The Clerks are working on updating and streamlining administrative 
processes, which also include updating applications, instructions, and ordinances.  The Town Board 
agreed Clerk/Treasurer Atwater to work with the planner on any updates that are recommended.   
 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater will be on vacation June 5-6, 2025.  The June packet deadline is June 3 at 
noon.   
 
Adjournment 
Motion:  Supervisor Pope moved to adjourn the meeting.  Vice Chair Storlie seconded the motion.   
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 09:09 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
 
Minutes Officially Approved By:    ___________________________________________ on: __________________                     

Town Chair                                                  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Vendor Check # Description Total 
05/13/2025 Payroll Period Ending 04/30/2025 11711 Payroll 04/16/2025-04/30/2025 $         2,213.92  
05/13/2025 Payroll Period Ending 04/30/2025 11712 Payroll 04/16/2025-04/30/2025 $         1,082.05  
05/13/2025 Payroll Period Ending 04/30/2025 11713 Payroll 04/16/2025-04/30/2025 $            780.11  
05/13/2025 Frontier Communications 11714 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  
05/13/2025 JSI Engineering 11715 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  
05/13/2025 Northern States Power Company 11716 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  

    

165



05/13/2025 RW Communications 11717 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  

05/13/2025 Metrofibernet, LLC 11718 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  

05/13/2025 JSI Engineering 11719 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  
05/13/2025 Frontier Communications 11720 Escrow Refund $         2,500.00  
05/13/2025 Royal Credit Union 11721 Transfer to Money Market $            296.21  
05/13/2025 Elizabeth Atwater 11722 April Mileage $              37.10 
05/13/2025 Mark Ceminsky 11723 April Road Mileage $            256.20  
05/13/2025 City of Farmington 11724 1st Quarter Fire Contract $       15,815.83  
05/13/2025 Grossman Companies 11725 Shared Plowing $            414.00  
05/13/2025 Grossman Companies 11726 Shared Grading $         2,277.00  
05/13/2025 Grossman Companies 11727 Plowing Asphalt $         6,141.00  
05/13/2025 Grossman Companies 11728 Garbage $            480.00  

05/13/2025 Grossman Companies 11729 Chubb Lake Road Clean up $         1,335.00  

05/13/2025 Grossman 11730 Grading March and April $       15,490.50  

05/13/2025 Inspectron 11731 Inspections $            584.16  

05/13/2025 JTN Communications 11732 Internet $            199.00  

05/13/2025 Kennedy & Graven 11733 Enforcement matters $         3,265.50  

05/13/2025 MATIT 11734 Insurance $         3,913.00  

05/13/2025 Metro Alarm & Lock 11735 Quarterly Billing $              90.00  

05/13/2025 Metro Sales 11736 Copier Rental $            121.67  

05/13/2025 Plunkett Pest Control 11737 Annual Contract $            540.49  

05/13/2025 VOID 11738 VOID $                0.00  

05/13/2025 T&C Cleaning 11739 April and May $           340.00  

05/13/2025 Town Law Center 11740 Legal $        5,935.20  

05/13/2025 WSB 11741 Planning and Zoning $        1,881.00  

05/13/2025 Internal Revenue Service 20250513EFT April Payroll Tax $        3,738.36  

05/13/2025 PERA 20250513EFT April $        1,327.69  

05/13/2025 MN Unemployment 20250513EFT Quarter 1, 2025 Unemployment $             11.97  

05/13/2025 Dakota Electric 20250513EFT Electric $           173.52  

05/13/2025 DSI 20250513EFT Garbage May  $           163.05  

05/13/2025 Visa 20250513EFT Adobe, zoom, domain $           230.22  

05/13/2025 Point North 20250513EFT April and May Billing $         1,049.00  

     

     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

166



 

167



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
DAKOTA COUNTY 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION 2025- 

RESOLUTION CLOSING AND BARRICAIDING GRENADA AVE 

WHEREAS, the Town Board is the road authority for town roads in Eureka Township 
pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 164.02; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board works with limited road and bridge funds set by a levy 
determined by the town electors at the annual town meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board finds that Grenada Avenue as described in Appendix A, 
pose particular maintenance and safety problems because of its physical structure, wetlands, and 
flooding, and are especially costly to keep open; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board determines keeping Grenada Avenue over Chub Creek 
would impose an unreasonable burden on the Town’s maintenance funds given its low level of 
use and its unique attributes making maintenance costly. 

WHEREAS, town boards have the authority under Minn. Stat. §§ 164.152 & 160.16 to 
close and barricade town roads. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Board of Eureka Township, 
Dakota County, Minnesota that Grenada Ave over Chub Creek and as described on the attached 
Appendix A, shall be closed effective as of the date the Town Board barricades and places 
proper signage on the road.   

Adopted this 10th day of June 2025. 

 

_____________________________________ 
                                                                                        Mark Ceminsky, Town Chair 

_____________________________ 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

168



Appendix A 
 

 

169



JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
CITY OF FARMINGTON -TOWN OF EUREKA 

SHARED ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
This Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Farmington, 
a Minnesota municipal corporation (“City”), and Eureka Township, a Minnesota public corporation 
(“Town”). 
 
WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 471.59 authorizes local governmental units to jointly or cooperatively 
exercise any power common to the contracting parties, and Minn. Stat. § 164.14 authorizes a town 
and adjoining city to provide equitable division of costs and responsibilities to be borne by each 
entity for a road on the line between a town and city; and 
 
WHEREAS, Farmington and Eureka share a common border; and 
 
WHEREAS, the portion of 220th Street from CSAH 31 (Denmark Ave.) to Essex Avenue (such 
portion, the “Road”) is on or along the boundary line between the City and the Town as shown on 
the map attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a planned public project to install 10-inch sanitary sewer lines within the 
220th Street roadbed; to install a 12-inch water trunk lines on the northern edge of the 220th Street 
roadbed; and to pave the portion of the 220th Street roadbed where the sanitary sewer and water 
trunk lines are to be installed, all in the general location depicted on the attached Exhibit B 
(collectively, the “Project”); 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Town previously entered into a Joint Powers Agreement effective October 
15, 2018 (“Prior JPA”) regarding 220th Street and Flagstaff Avenue and the parties desire to update 
the agreement between the parties to address a utility project the City desires to undertake on 220th 
Street and to reflect the fact that Flagstaff Avenue is no longer maintained pursuant to the Prior JPA; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The City and Town desire to enter into this Agreement to specify how the parties will 
assign the maintenance responsibility for the Road as required by state law for line roads. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 
1. 220th STREET 

 
A. Project Construction.   

 
i. Authorization.  The Town authorizes the City full access to the Road right-of-way as 

needed to construct the Project, without charge to the Town, between the period of 
April 1, 2025, through November 1, 2025, or through the date of substantial 
completion of the Project, whichever is later, for the purpose of completing the 
construction of the Project.   
 

170



ii. Improvements.  The City agrees it will install as part of the Project lateral stubs for 
the sanitary sewer and water for properties on the south side of 220th Street and 
extend such service stubs to those owners upon request at no cost to the Town or 
the property owner.  Any connection to and use of these services and stubs will be 
subject to a separate Utility Connection Agreement between the City and Town. 

 
B. Maintenance of Improved Portion.  The City agrees to assume full responsibility for 

maintaining the portion of 220th Street from the eastern boundary of the shared road to 
the western edge of the box culverts, including any costs associated with repairing or 
replacing the Bridge 96495 located over the Vermillion River.  The City agrees as part of 
its obligation to maintain the box culverts that it will clean them by no later than 
November 1, 2025.   
 

C. Maintenance of Western Portion.  Maintenance of the portion of 220th Street west of 
the box culverts to Essex Avenue (“Western Portion”) shall be shared between the City 
and the Town in accordance with the following: 

 
i. The Town will be responsible for administering maintenance activities of the 

roadbed to keep it smooth and in good repair for the passage of traffic and free 
from all obstructions and impediments to traffic. This includes but is not limited 
to: grading, spot graveling, washout repair, dust-coating and snow control. 
 

ii. The Town and City will be responsible to pay the costs of labor, materials, 
hauling, and grading proportional to the area within its respective jurisdiction.  

 
iii. In the event that the Town and City mutually agree that additional road gravel, 

beyond spot graveling, is needed, the Town shall be responsible for such work. 
The Town and City shall each pay the costs of labor, materials, hauling, and 
grading proportional to the area within its respective jurisdiction. 

 
iv. When a culvert lies within both jurisdictions and the Town and City mutually 

agree that replacement is needed, the Town shall be responsible for such work.  
 

v. The Town and City shall each pay one-half (½)of the costs of labor, materials, 
hauling, and grading for the work performed on the Western Portion of the Road. 

 
vi. The Town and City shall each be independently responsible for all other 

maintenance activities on the Western Portion including, but not limited to, 
brush maintenance, mowing, signs, and litter on their respective sides of the 
Road. 

 
2. Working Standards.  Work performed by either the City or Town, or their respective 

contractors, under this Agreement shall comply with the following: 
 

A. Furnish all labor, materials, supplies, tools and other items necessary for the 
performance of the work provided for in this Agreement. All materials used shall 
conform to the requirements of the Minnesota Department of Transportation 

171



Specifications for Construction, most current edition and all amendments and 
supplements thereto. 

 
B. The Road subject to this Agreement may be partially blocked for the period of time 

necessary for the performance of the services specified herein. In cases of emergency, 
a road may be wholly blocked to prevent passage of traffic. At no time, however, shall a 
road be obstructed for a longer period of time than is reasonably required for making the 
necessary repairs. A road may also be closed at such time as is necessary for the repair 
or installation of water or gas mains, electric or telephone cables, or sewers. Except in 
cases of emergencies, ten (10) days written notice shall be provided to the other party 
prior to the commencement of such installation or repairs. A suitable detour shall be 
provided at any time it is necessary to close or totally block traffic from using a road. 

 
C. All partial and total closures of a road shall be carried out in conformance with the 

current edition of the Minnesota Manual on Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD). 
  

3. DELEGATION.  Each party hereby delegates to the other party such authority as may be needed 
for the designated party to perform the maintenance work as assigned in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement. 
 

4. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY. Each party shall be liable for the acts or omissions of its respective 
officers, agents and employees. Each party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other 
from any claims, losses, costs, expenses or damages, including reasonable attorney fees, 
resulting from the acts or omissions of the respective officers, agents or employees of the 
indemnifying party to the extent such acts or omissions relate to activities conducted by the 
indemnifying party under this Agreement or in the construction of the Project. Nothing herein 
shall be deemed a waiver of any statutory or common law limitations on liability available to 
either of the parties. For the purposes of determining total liability, the parties shall be 
considered a single governmental unit and their total liability shall not exceed the limits for a 
single governmental unit as specified in Minnesota Statutes, Section 466.04. 
 

5. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by giving a ninety (90) day 
written notice to the other party of its intent to terminate. Either party may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by giving seven days' written notice of its intent to terminate to the other 
party. Such notice to terminate for cause shall specify the circumstances warranting 
termination of the Agreement. Cause shall mean a material breach of this Agreement and any 
supplemental agreements or amendments thereto. Upon notification, the receiving party shall 
have seven days to cure or respond to the notifying party of its intent to cure. If the notifying 
party is not satisfied with the response, and further discussion or efforts to resolve the dispute 
are not successful, the dispute shall be resolved as set forth in Section 8 of this Agreement.  
Termination of this Agreement shall not discharge any liability, responsibility or right of any 
party, which arises from the performance of or failure to adequately perform the terms of this 
Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 
 

6. NOTICES.  For the purpose of delivery of any notice required by this Agreement, notice shall be 
effective if delivered certified or registered United States mail, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid or hand delivered to: 

 

172



  
City of Farmington: City of Farmington 

    Attention: City Administrator 
430 Third Street 

    Farmington, Minnesota 55024 
 

Town of Eureka:  Town of Eureka 
     Attention: Town Chair 

25043 Cedar Avenue 
Farmington, Minnesota 55024 

  
or at such other address as either party may notify the other in accordance with this Section. 

  
7. TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 

A. The party responsible for the work shall submit an invoice to the authorized agent of the 
other party for payment of the work completed. Payments shall be made within thirty 
(30) days after the later of the receipt of invoice for services performed or the 
acceptance of such services by the authorized agent of the City. 
 

B. Any disputes relating to payment for services shall be handled pursuant to paragraph 8 
of this Agreement. 

 
8. DISPUTES AND REMEDIES 
 

The Town and City agree as follows: 
 

A. Negotiation. If a disagreement over interpretation of any provision of this Agreement 
should arise, the City and the Town shall direct staff members, as they deem 
appropriate, to meet at least one (1) time at a mutually convenient time and place to 
attempt to resolve the dispute through negotiation. 

 
B. Mediation. If the parties to this Agreement are unable to resolve disputes, claims or 

counterclaims, or are unable to negotiate an interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, the parties shall seek relief by submitting their respective grievances to 
mediation. The parties shall jointly agree on a mediator or shall request that a mediator 
be appointed by American Arbitration Association. The parties shall share equally in the 
costs of such mediation. 

 
C. Adjudication. If the parties to this Agreement are unable to resolve disputes, claims or 

counterclaims after submitting their respective grievances to mediation, either party 
may seek relief through initiation of an action in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. In the event that any provision contained in this Agreement should be breached by 
either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the 

173



particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other concurrent, 
previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 
 

B. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
oral agreements and representations between the parties relating to the subject matter 
thereof. 

 
C. All documents regarding the Project shall be handled in accordance with the Minnesota 

Government Data Practices Act. 
 

D. Each party, to the best of its respective knowledge, represents and agrees that no 
member, official or employee shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement or the Project nor shall any member, official or employee participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement or the Project which affects his or her personal 
financial interests or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which 
he or she is, directly or indirectly, interested. 

 
E. Any alteration, variation, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be valid 

only if in writing and executed by both parties. 
 

F. If any part of this Agreement is rendered void, invalid, or unenforceable, such rendering 
shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement unless 
the part or parts that are void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable shall substantially 
impair the value of the entire Agreement with respect to either party. 

 
G. The titles of sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and shall be disregarded in constructing or interpreting any of the provisions hereof. 
 

H. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of Minnesota. 
 

I. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each one of which will 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
J. This Agreement supersedes and replaces the Prior JPA, which is hereby repealed.  
 
K. The Recitals at the beginning of this Agreement, and the Exhibits attached to this 

Agreement, are each one true and correct, and are incorporated into and made part of 
this Agreement. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on their behalves 
on the date last written below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

174



       CITY OF FARMINGTON 
 
 
Date:_________________________   By:______________________________________ 
 
 
       Attest:___________________________________ 
 
 
       TOWN OF EUREKA 
 
Date:__________________________   By:_______________________________________ 
 
 
       By:_______________________________________ 
 
 
  

175



EXHIBIT A 
Map of the Road 

 
 
 
 

  

176



EXHIBIT B 
Map of City Project Location 

 
 

 

177



Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
 

RESOLUTION 2025- 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2025-09 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Eureka Township approved resolution 2025-09; 

WHEREAS, Township Ordinance Part I: Administrative provisions, Chapter 62 Planning 
Commission, 62-5 Time and Place of meetings states:  The Planning Commission shall have 
monthly regular sessions at the times and on the days shown by the schedule of regular meetings. 
The schedule shall be adopted by resolution of the Board of Supervisors at the reorganizational 
meeting and shall be kept on file at the Town Hall. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of Eureka Township, Dakota County, 
Minnesota hereby amends the following schedule of Planning Commission meetings: 

  
 July 1, 2025     November 25, 2025 
 July 29, 2025    December 30, 2025 
 August 26, 2025   January 27, 2026 
 September 30, 2025   February 24, 2026 
 October 28, 2025   March 31, 2026 
      April 28, 2026 
*Typically the last Tuesday of each month. 
     
All Regular Scheduled Planning Commission Meetings shall commence at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 
____________________________, 2025 by the Eureka Town Board. 
 
      _____________________________________________________ 
      Town Board Chair 
 
      ______________________________________________________ 
       Liz Atwater, Clerk/Treasurer 

178



 
 

Voting Equipment Replacement Overview 2025 
 

Summary 
Dakota County’s voting equipment is quickly becoming outdated, leading to challenges in reliability and efficiency. As 
election standards evolve and voter expectations increase, upgrading to the next generation of voting equipment is 
critical to ensure trust in the electoral process, compliance with regulations, ease of use, and accessibility for all voters.  

 

Background 

Current State of Equipment 

The County’s voting equipment was deployed in 2015. With proactive care and preventive maintenance, ballot 
tabulators have been successfully used in over 40 elections. Users are seeing slower processing times and a higher 
level of ongoing maintenance. Additionally, the accessible voting hardware has already reached the end of its life and 
does not efficiently or dependably support voters with disabilities.  

Growth in Population and Equipment Use 

Dakota County’s current voting equipment was originally deployed in 2015 and the number of eligible voters in our 
county has increased over 10 percent since that time. Equipment was projected to be used 2-3 times each year but at 
least 4 elections have been conducted each year since 2019.  Rigorous testing requirements demand that each ballot 
is scanned multiple times to check for accuracy and reliability, both in preliminary and public accuracy testing.   

 

Proposed Solution 

Invest in new, state-of-the-art voting equipment that: 

1. Enhances Security: Incorporates advanced encryption and other features to prevent tampering. 

2. Improves Accessibility: Meets ADA standards and provides equitable access for voters with disabilities. 

3. Increases Efficiency and Voter Trust: Reduces wait times, streamlines ballot processing, and minimizes potential 
for errors. Enhances overall trust in the electoral process. 

4. Supports Scalability: Accommodates future growth in voter participation. 

 

Risks of Inaction 
Outdated voting equipment poses risks to the integrity and efficiency of our elections. Delays and equipment 
malfunctions frustrate voters and can lead to longer lines, potentially disenfranchising voters. Repairing outdated 
equipment is increasingly expensive, laborious, and less cost-effective over time. Costs are increasing as maintenance 
and repairs will continue to rise as equipment ages. Additionally, security vulnerabilities and inefficiencies may erode 
public confidence in elections. 

 

179



Equipment Certification Process 
Voting equipment certification begins with the U.S. Election Assistance Commission (EAC), through a painstaking 
application, testing, and review process. In Minnesota, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 206.57, an electronic voting system 
must be certified by the Minnesota Secretary of State and tested by a testing authority accredited by the EAC or tested 
by a federal agency (i.e. the EAC) pursuant to the Voluntary Voting Systems Guidelines (VVSG).  This limits the 
equipment that is available for use to those that have been tested and/or certified by the State. 

As of April 2025, there are three vendors which have equipment approved for use in Minnesota: Dominion Voting 
Systems, Hart InterCivic, and Election Systems & Software (ES&S). The breakdown of usage among counties is listed 
below:  

 Dominion Voting Systems: Aitkin, Crow Wing, Dakota, Mahnomen, Scott, and Sherburne 
 Hart InterCivic: Big Stone, Chisago, and Ramsey 
 ES&S: Anoka, Blue Earth, Hennepin, Olmsted, Rice, Washington, and all other MN Counties 

 

Cost-Share Plan 
This project is estimated to cost $5 million, which will include the initial equipment purchase (e.g., tabulators, software, 
peripherals) and training for staff.  In previous voting equipment purchases, Dakota County assumed 50% of the cost, 
while city and township partners assumed the remaining 50%. Recent cost share agreements for services and poll pad 
equipment have included school districts in the cost share. This cost-share agreement shall be structured so that 
Dakota County would assume 65% of the cost, city and township partners would assume 30% of the costs, and school 
districts would assume 5% of the costs. 

In previous election cost-share agreements, Dakota County has allowed partners to split up-front costs into multiple 
years to reduce the immediate budget impact.  We will allow our municipal partners the same flexibility in this 
agreement, instituting a five-year payment structure with payments beginning in 2027. 
 

 

Timeline 
1. Create cost-share agreement with municipal partners (April-May 2025) 
2. Conduct transparent, collaborative RFP process (April – October 2025)  
3. Deploy/ implement equipment and train County staff, clerks, and election judges (Jan – July 2026) 
4. Utilize equipment for August 11, 2026 State Primary Election 

 

Conclusion 
Investing in modern voting equipment is not just a financial decision but a commitment to maintaining the integrity 
and trustworthiness of our democratic process. This project will help ensure secure, efficient, and accessible elections 
for all voters in our jurisdiction. 

180



COST SHARE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

__________________________________________________  
AND COUNTY OF DAKOTA 

FOR ELECTION HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, AND RELATED SERVICES 

This Cost Share Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the 
__________________________________________________________________ (“Municipality”), 
_________________________________________, MN _______, and the County of Dakota (“County”), 
1590 Highway 55, Hastings, MN 55033. Municipality and County are referred to individually as 
the “Party” and are collectively referred to as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 471.59, two or more governmental units, by 
agreement through action of their governing bodies, may jointly exercise powers common to the 
governmental units; and 

WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. § 206.805, the parties are empowered to purchase 
election hardware, software and related services; and 

WHEREAS, the County, along with cities and townships in Dakota County, shared the 
cost for the purchase and implementation of voting equipment in 1998 and 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties are desirous of cooperating to purchase a replacement for the 
current voting equipment system for use by the Parties and other cities, townships, and school 
districts in Dakota County who enter into separate Cost Share Agreements with the County 
(collectively, the “Governmental Units”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants contained herein 
and subject to the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 471.59, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. PURPOSE

A. The purpose of this Agreement is to authorize the County to purchase election hardware,
software and related services for the Parties and to establish the obligations of the Parties with
respect to their use and maintenance.

II. TERM

A. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, which is the date when
all signatures of the Parties are obtained and shall remain in full force and effect until the
Expiration Date, which is the date when the Vendor Contract entered into pursuant to Section
III(A) terminates, this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, or by operation of law,
whichever occurs first. This Agreement may be extended by written mutual agreement of the
Parties.

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

25043 Cedar Avenue

Eureka Township

Eureka Township

55024

181



III. DUTIES OF THE COUNTY 
 

The Vendor Contract includes hardware, software, licensing, and maintenance. 

A. Solicitation. In conformance with the provisions of Minnesota law, the County will prepare 
a Request for Proposals (RFP) for an electronic voting system that meets the requirements of all 
Minnesota statutes and rules, including Minn. Stat. § 206.57, to be used by all local government 
units in Dakota County, including the Parties. The County will consult with the Municipality in 
preparation of the RFP. The solicitation will consist of a competitive process consistent with 
state law applicable to such solicitation. 

 
The RFP will include vendor-supplied technical maintenance and regular maintenance and 
upgrades of the election hardware and software, wherever stored, for at least five (5) years from 
the date of purchase, including assurances of sufficient parts, supplies and accessories, warranty 
service, and will seek to obtain a trade-in allowance for all electronic voting systems owned by 
Dakota County. 

 
B. Award of Contract. The final decision on the vendor to whom the contract shall be awarded 
will be made by the Dakota County Board of Commissioners. The contract will be awarded to 
a vendor whose proposal meets all of the standards for voting systems required by Minnesota 
law. The County will defend and indemnify the Municipality, its elected officials, employees 
and/or agents and hold them harmless from all claims and damages arising out of the 
solicitation process and the award of contract for the election hardware, software and related 
services. 

 
C. Repairs and Maintenance. The County will arrange for all necessary repairs, maintenance 
and upgrades to the election hardware and software between election seasons. 
 
D. Purchase and Delivery. The County will arrange for the purchase and delivery of election 
hardware and peripherals. 

 
E. Licenses. The County will obtain all licenses and other rights necessary for the Municipality 
to use the election hardware and software for its intended use. The County will defend and 
indemnify the Municipality, its elected officials, employees and/or agents and hold them 
harmless from all claims and damages arising out of any license, copyright or other intellectual 
property right. 

F. Insurance. The County will include the election hardware and software on its commercial 
property casualty insurance coverage. 

 
G. Ownership. The County will own the election hardware and software purchased pursuant 
to this Agreement, regardless of where the election hardware and software may be stored or 
used. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

182



IV. DUTIES OF THE MUNICIPALITY 
 

A. Existing Election Hardware and Software. To the extent the Municipality has ballot 
tabulation equipment or ballot boxes in its possession, it will turn such equipment over to the 
County. 

 
B. Storage, Handling and Service. The Municipality must provide safe storage and handling of 
the election hardware and software when such equipment is in the Municipality's possession. 
The Municipality will report any needed hardware and software maintenance, in writing, to the 
County. Any election hardware or software problems on election days may be reported to the 
County orally. 

 
C. Payment. 

a. Upon award of the contract, the County will first pay sixty-five percent (65%) of 
the purchase price and apply trade-in credit received, if any, to each of the election 
hardware and software packages purchased. The Municipality will pay its pro 
rata share of the remaining cost, by percentage, for the election hardware and 
software packages purchased by the County for the Municipality as identified in 
Appendix A. 

 
b. Payment by the Municipality to the County will be made in five (5) equal annual 

installments, without interest, on or before January 31st of each year beginning in 
2027 and ending in 2031. The Municipality may prepay installments at any time 
without penalty. The Municipality will pay the County within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of receipt of an invoice from the County. 

c. The Municipality will pay to the County its pro rata share of the annual 
maintenance costs for the election equipment. The Municipality will pay the 
County within forty-five (45) days receipt of an invoice from the County. 

 
D. Operation of the System. Municipality shall operate in compliance with the following 
General Conditions Governing Operation of the Electronic Voting System: 

 
a. Municipality shall distribute voting equipment to precincts in the quantities 

advised by the County in each election held in the Municipality through the term 
of this Agreement. 

b. Municipality must only use the polling place and election procedures approved 
by or from the County or the Minnesota Secretary of State. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

183



V. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

A. Municipality. The Municipality will defend and indemnify the County, its elected officials, 
employees, and agents and hold them harmless from all claims and damages arising out of the 
use, transport, storage, handling, or maintenance of the voting equipment, which are 
attributable to the intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions of the Municipality, its 
elected officials, employees, or agents. 

 
B. County. The County will defend and indemnify the Municipality, its elected officials, 
employees, and agents and hold them harmless from all claims and damages arising out of the 
solicitation and award of the Vendor Contract and arising out of the transport, handling, or 
storage of the voting equipment attributable to the intentional, willful, or negligent acts or 
omissions of the County, its elected officials, employees, or agents. The County does not 
warrant, nor does it indemnify the Municipality for performance of or failure to perform by the 
Contract Vendor. Nevertheless, the County will pursue any and all rights it may have with 
respect to warranties, when requested by the Municipality or when necessary, to assure 
conformance with the intended use of the voting equipment. 

C. Municipal Tort Claims Act. It is understood and agreed that the provisions of the Municipal 
Tort Claims Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 466, and other applicable laws govern liability arising from the 
Parties’ acts or omissions. Each Party warrants that it is able to comply with the aforementioned 
indemnity requirements through an insurance or self-insurance program and that each has 
minimum coverage consistent with the liability limits contained in Minn. Stat. Ch. 466. For 
purposes of determining total liability for tort damages which may arise from this Agreement, 
the Parties are to be considered a single governmental unit. 

 
VI. STATE AUDIT 

 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, each Party’s books, records, documents, and accounting 
procedures and practices relevant to this Agreement are subject to examination by the State 
and/or the State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six (6) years 
from the Expiration Date of this Agreement. 

 
VII. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, 
or disseminated by the Parties in the performance of this Agreement is subject to the 
requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, and its 
implementing rules, as well as any other applicable State or Federal laws on data privacy or 
security. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

184



Each Party shall provide the other Party with prompt notice of a breach of the security of data 
defined in Minn. Stat. § 13.055, subd. 1(a) or suspected breach of the security of data and shall 
assist in remedying such breach. Providing or accepting assistance does not constitute a waiver 
of any claim or cause of action for breach of contract. 

The Parties shall promptly notify each other when any third-party requests data related to this 
Agreement, the voting equipment, or the Vendor Contract.  

VIII. VENUE 
 

Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate 
court of competent jurisdiction in Dakota County, Minnesota. 

IX. TERMINATION 
 

A. The County will notify the Municipality if its Governmental Unit Share as stated in 
Appendix A is projected to increase. Small cities and townships that utilize mail balloting will 
not be subject to this Agreement. Otherwise, the Parties must mutually agree to terminate this 
Agreement in writing by the undersigned or their successors. 

 
B. Termination. This Agreement shall remain in effect until the occurrence of any one of the 
following events: 

 
a. Termination is necessitated by operation of law or as a result of a decision by a 

court of competent jurisdiction. 
b. The Agreement entered into pursuant to Paragraph III(B) above has expired or 

has otherwise been terminated. 
c. Parties mutually agree to terminate Agreement. 

X. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

A. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any provision of this 
Agreement is void, invalid, or unenforceable, it will not affect the validity and enforceability of 
the remainder of this Agreement, unless the void, invalid, or unenforceable provision 
substantially impairs the value of the entire Agreement with respect to either Party. 
 
B. Assignment. No Party may assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior consent of the other Party and an assignment agreement, approved and 
executed by all Parties to this Agreement, or their successors in office. 

C. Amendments. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and is not effective 
until approved and executed by all Parties to this Agreement, or their successors in office. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

185



D. Waiver. If any Party fails to enforce any provision of this Agreement, such failure does not
waive the provision or its right to enforce it.

E. Contract Complete. This Agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the
Parties. No other understanding regarding this Agreement, whether written or oral, is binding
on any Party.

F. Compliance with Laws. The Parties shall abide by all Federal, State and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or hereinafter adopted pertaining to this
Agreement.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

186



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Municipality and the County have caused this Agreement to be 
executed on their behalf. 

COUNTY OF DAKOTA TOWN OF 

By: 

Name:  

Title: 

Date:  

By: 
 ____________________,Board Chair or Designee

Date:  

By: 
   _____________________,  Clerk or Designee

Date:  

Approved as to form: 

Assistant County Attorney/Date 
File No. KS- 

/s/Tom Donely        05/16/2025

25-212

Tom Novak

PSR Division Director

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

Eureka

Mark Ceminsky

Elizabeth Atwater

187



Appendix A: COST PROJECTIONS FOR INITIAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE* 
*The information in this Appendix A is informational only and based on all Governmental Units
identified in the chart executing a Cost Sharing Agreement and a total Purchase Price of $5,000,000. If
one or more of these factors changes, the Municipal Share will likely increase.

Voters Percentage Amount 
Dakota County 289,935 65% $ 3,250,000 
Cities/Townships 289,935 30% $ 1,500,000 
School Districts 289,935 5% $ 250,000 

Municipality Share Voters % of Reg Voters Amount Annual Payback 
Apple Valley 35,995 12.4% $ 186,382 $ 37,276 
Burnsville 37,579 13.0% $ 194,584 $ 38,917 
Castle Rock Twp 998 0.3% $ 5,168 $ 1,034 
Coates 98 $ - $ - 
Douglas Twp 536 0.2% $ 2,775 $ 555 
Eagan 45,746 15.8% $ 236,873 $ 47,375 
Empire 2,022 0.7% $ 10,470 $ 2,094 
Eureka Twp 1,088 0.4% $ 5,634 $ 1,127 
Farmington 14,909 5.1% $ 77,199 $ 15,440 
Greenvale Twp 624 0.2% $ 3,231 $ 646 
Hampton City 440 0.2% $ 2,278 $ 456 
Hampton Twp 630 0.2% $ 3,262 $ 652 
Hastings 15,061 5.2% $ 77,986 $ 15,597 
Inver Grove Heights 23,212 8.0% $ 120,192 $ 24,038 
Lakeville 49,329 17.0% $ 255,426 $ 51,085 
Lilydale 802 0.3% $ 4,153 $ 831 
Marshan Twp 882 0.3% $ 4,567 $ 913 
Mendota City 148 0.1% $ 766 $ 153 
Mendota Heights 9,119 3.1% $ 47,218 $ 9,444 
Miesville 88 $ - $ - 
New Trier 62 $ - $ - 
Nininger Twp 631 0.2% $ 3,267 $ 653 
Northfield 989 0.3% $ 5,121 $ 1,024 
Randolph City 297 0.1% $ 1,538 $ 308 
Randolph Twp 560 0.2% $ 2,900 $ 580 
Ravenna Twp 1,738 0.6% $ 8,999 $ 1,800 
Rosemount 18,686 6.5% $ 96,756 $ 19,351 
Sciota Twp 340 0.1% $ 1,761 $ 352 
South St. Paul 12,322 4.3% $ 63,803 $ 12,761 
Sunfish Lake 435 0.2% $ 2,252 $ 450 
Vermillion City 307 0.1% $ 1,590 $ 318 
Vermillion Twp 918 0.3% $4,753 $ 951 
Waterford Twp 395 0.1% $ 2,045 $ 409 
West St. Paul 12,949 4.5% $ 67,050 $ 13,410 

Docusign Envelope ID: DA870DA2-683B-4119-95DC-72EFFF15FF72

188


	Voting Equipment Replacement Overview 2025
	Summary
	Background
	Proposed Solution
	Risks of Inaction
	Equipment Certification Process
	Cost-Share Plan
	Timeline
	Conclusion

	5.21.2025 -Oien_Letter_Re__Violation_of_Settlement_Agreement.pdf
	Robert A. Alsop
	RAA

	Resolution 2025- Amending Resolution 2025-09  Planning Commission setting regular meetings.pdf
	RESOLUTION 2025-
	RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2025-09

	Comp Plan Changes - Revised.pdf
	Commercial-Industrial Land Use
	Existing Provisions and Studies

	Aggregate Extraction
	Land Use Goals
	Policies


	Comp Plan Changes (1).pdf
	Location
	Regional Planning Designation
	Cultural Resources Goal
	Agriculture Land Use, Zoning, and Permitted Uses
	Residential Land Use
	Density
	Regional Growth Forecasts-Township's Land Use Plan Consistent with Forecast Growth

	Commercial-Industrial Land Use
	Existing Provisions and Studies

	Aggregate Extraction
	Land Use Goals
	Policies





